
Ray Bagshaw 
Mavor 

Ben Pierce 
Council Member 

Susan Fortini 
Council Member 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

City Hall - Council Chamber 
405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida 

Tuesday, January15, 2019 
6:30p.m. 

John Dowless 
Council President 

Lee Chotas 
Council Member 

Richard Alan Horn 
Council Member 

WELCOME! We are very glad you have joined us for today 's Council meeting . If you are not on the agenda, 
please complete an appearance form and hand it to the City Clerk. When you are recognized, state your 
name and address. The Council is pleased to hear relevant comments; howev er a five-minute limit has been 
set by Council. Large groups are asked to name a spokesperson. Robert's Ru les of Order guide the conduct 
of the meeting. PLEASE SILENCE ALL CELLULAR PHONES AND PAGERS DURING THE MEETING. "THANK 
YOU" for participating in your City Government. 

(Pgs. 1-2) Age nda Summary 

I A. CALL TO ORDER 

I B. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

I c. ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

I D. PRESENTATION 

I. (Pg. 3) Mayoral Proclamation - "School Choice Week" ·Mayor Ray Bagshaw 

E. CONSENT AGENDA 

I. Review and Approval of Minutes 

• (Pgs. 4-11) December 18, 20 18 M inutes 

(Items on the consent agenda are defined as routine in nature, therefore, do not warrant detailed 
discussion or individual act ion by the Council. A ny member of the Council may remove any item from 
the con sent agenda simply by verbal request prior to consideration of the consent agenda. The removed 
item(s) are mored to the end of Ne w Business for discussion and consideration.) 



Regular Council Meeting January 15, 2019 Page 2 

I F. ORDINANCES 

None. 

I G. PUBLIC HEARINGS (ORDINANCES- SECOND READINGS & RELATED ACTION) 

]. (Pgs. 12-35) ORDINANCE 2018-13 - AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF 
EDGEWOOD AMENDING THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES 
CHAPTER 106 TO MAKE MODIFICATIONS TO BRING THE REGULATIONS INTO 
AGREEMENT WITH THE MOST CURRENT FEMA-APPROVED, CODE-COMPANION 
FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE FOR FLORIDA COMMUNITIES: TO 
ADOPT NEW FLOOD HAZARD MAPS: PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY: AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

2. (Pgs. 36-37) ORDINANCE 2018-16- AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE 2018/2019 FIVE YEAR 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ANNUAL UPDATE; PROVIDING FOR 
LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS: PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
EXCLUSION FROM CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

I H. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None. 

I I. NEW BUSINESS 

I. (Pgs. 38-41) Review & Consideration of Code Enforcement Magistrate and Red Light 
Hearing Officer - City Attorney Smith 

2. (Pgs. 42-43) Appointment(s) to Planning & Zoning Board- Mayor Ray Bagshaw 

3. (Pgs. 44-52) 2019 Vote Processing Equipment Use Agreement and Elections Services 
Contract for Municipal Elections 

I J. GENERAL INFORMATION (No action required) 

I K. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

I L. BOARDS & COMMITTEES 

I M. STAFF REPORTS 

City Attorney Smith: 



Regular Council Meeting January 15, 2019 Page 3 

Police Chief Freeburg: 

• (Pg. 53 ) Monthly Report 

City Clerk Meeks: 

I N. MAYOR & COUNCIL REPORTS 

• Mayor Bagshaw 
• Council President Dowless 
• Council Member Chatas 
• Council Member For1ini 
• Council Member Horn 
• Council Member Pierce 

I 0. ADJOURNMENT 

UPCOMING MEETINGS: 

Monday, February II, 2019 ........................................ Planning & Zoning Meeting (6:30p.m.) 
Tuesday. February 19, 2019 ........................................ Regular City Council Meeting (6:30p.m.) 

You are welcome to attend and express your opuuon. Please be adYised that Section 286.0105, Florida 
Statutes state that if you decide to appeal a decision made with respect to any matter, you will need a record 
of the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made. In accordance with the American 
Disabilities Act (ADA), if any person with a disability as defined by the ADA needs special accommodation to 
participate in this proceeding, he or she should telephone the City Clerk at (407) 851-2920. 



Fv01tW~~of~GiAy GUY~ .... 

B~ L. fvt~y_, fvtfvtC, vPfvt, CBTO 
TO: Mayor Bagshaw, Council President Dowless, Council Members 

Chotas, Fortini, Horn and Pierce 

CC: City Attorney Drew Smith, Police Chief John Freeburg, Deputy City 
Clerk Sandy Riffle and PD Manager Shannon Patterson 

DATE: Januat)' 8, 2019 

RE: Januat1' 15, 2019 Agenda Packet 

The following is a summary of the January 15, 2019 agenda items. 

Please note the following: 

Roll Call & Determination of Ouorum 

As of the date of this memo, I have received no notification from any Counc il Member advising that they 
cannot attend the meeting. 

Consent A genda 

I. December 12,2018 City Council meeting minutes 

No comments. 

Ordinance(s) (Second/Final Reading) 

I. Ordinance 2018-13 
> Ordinance 2018-13 amends the City Code as it relates to the floodplain. As explained by 

City Attorney Smith in the December 18, 2018 Council meeting, approval of this 
Ordinance will align with FEMA's request. 

2. Ordinance 20 18-16 
> Approval of this Ordinance updates the City's Capital Improvement Element (CIE), and 

keeps the City in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan Act. 

Council approved the first reading of these Ordinances in the December council meeting. Following 
approval, I announced that the Ordinances wou ld be published pursuant to Florida Statute. The ads were 
timely submitted, proofed and confirmation given to publish on January 3, 20 19. Unfortunately, due to 
circumstances out of the control of the Orlando Sentinel, the ads were not published. Staff will publish for 
hearing in the February 19, 2019 Council meeting. 
comments/questions regarding this process. 

1 

I refer to City Attorney Smith for further 



New Business 

I. Review & Consideration of Code Enforcement Magistrate and Red Light Hearing Officer 

The City's cu1Tent Code Enforcement Magistrate Bill Reischmann is stepping down due to a conflict. The 
recommendation is to move the City's Red Light Hearing Officer, Debra Babb- utcher to the Code 
Enforcement Magistrate position, and bring Catherine Theresa Hollis in as the City's Red Light Hearing 
Officer. The resumes of both these attorneys are in your agenda packet. I refer to City Attorney Smith for 
ftuther comments/questions regarding these positions. 

2. ;Appointment(s) to Planning & Zoning Board -

ln your agenda packet is a copy of an email from Planning & Zoning Board member Regina Dunay. 
Res ident Dunay says she does not want to continue serving on the Board . Mayor Bagshaw acknowledged 
receipt of thi s email and thanked Board Member Dunay for her service on the Board. 

ln your packet you have information regarding the terms of the Planning & Zon ing Board members. The 
terms of Regina Dunay and Chris Rader were completed in December 2018. Mayor Bagshaw confi rmed 
with me he is recommend ing that Chris Radar continue serving on the Planning & Zoning Board. I refer 
to Mayor Bagshaw for information regarding the open seat on the Board, and Council's acceptance of the 
Mayor's recommendation for Chris Radar to continue serving on the Planning & Zoning Board. 

3. 2019 Vote Processing Equipment Use Agreement and Elections Services Contract for Municipa l 
Elections 

As you kn ow, the City's election will be March 12, 2019. As always, the City is provided with an 
Agreement from the Supervisor of Election's office. The Agreement is essentially the same as those the 
City's has approved in the past. I refer you to page 9 of the Agreement and ask for your consideration of 
"yes" for those items in the boxed-in area of the Agreement. 

The current fiscal year budget provides an election budget of $4000. Th is year's election is a stand-alone 
election; meaning we are not piggy-backing off a County, State or Federal e lection. In addition to ballot 
and advertising costs, the City will also be paying for the poll workers (approximately $ 1200), and any 
costs associated with the equipment, if applicable. The City does not have early voting, which is an 
additional cost. 

4. Staff R eport(s) 

Chief Freeburg's report is included in the agenda. The Chief has provided his report in the format requested 
by Council Member Horn in the December Council meeting. 

This concludes my summary of the agenda items. 

i (b) The plann ing and zoning board shall consist of five members appointed by th e mayor su bj ec t to con fi rmation by 
the citv council from among the res idents of the citv. Members of the planning and zoning boa rd shall be appointed to 
serve fo r three year s in staggered sequences. Members shall be appointed from among persons who are in a pos ition 
to represe nt the public interest, and no person shall be appointed with private or per sonal interests likely to conflict 
with the general public interest. If a ny person appointed shall find that his private or personal interests a re invo lved 
in any matter coming before the planni ng and zoni ng board , he shall disq ualify himse lf from t aking part in action on 
the mat ter, or he may be disq ualified by the chairperson of t he board or by three votes of the board , not including the 
member about whom the ques tions are raised. 

2 

2 



MAYORAL PROCLAMATIO~ 

WHEREAS, all children in the City of Edgewood should have access to the highest-quality 

education possible; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Edgewood recognizes the important role that an effective education 

plays in preparing all students in City of Edgewood to be successful adults; and, 

WHEREAS quality education is critically important to the economic vitality of City of 

Edgewood; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Edgewood is home to a multitude of excellent education options from 

which parents can choose for their children; and, 

WHEREAS, educational variety not only helps to diversify our economy, but also enhances the 
vibrancy of our community; and, 

'VHEREAS, our area has many high-quality teaching professionals who are committed to 
educating our children; and, 

WHEREAS, School Choice Week is celebrated across the country by millions of students, 
parents, educators, schools and organizations to raise awareness of the need for effective educational 

options; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ray Bagshaw, Mayor of the City of Edgewood, Florida do hereby 

recognize January 20-26,2019 as City of Edgewood SCHOOL CHOICE WEEK, and I call this 

observance to the attention of all of our citizens. 

ATTEST: 

~'vw-
Bea L. Meeks, MMC, CPM, CBTO 

City Clerk 

Dated this lS'h day of January, 2019. 

Ray Bagshaw 
Mayor 

3 



I CALL TO ORDER 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOTES 
Tuesday, December 18, 2018 

Council President Dowless called the December 18, 2018 City Council meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
Council President Dowless gave the invocation and then led eve1yone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

City Clerk Meeks announced Council Member Fortini was absent due to a work conflict. Council 
Jl'Jember Chotas made the JV!otion to excuse Council Jl1ember Fortini from the m eeting; second from 
Council Nlember Hom. Approved (410). 

The fo llowing attendance is noted: 

Attendees: 
Ray Bagshaw, Mayor 
John Dowless, Council President 
R. Alan Horn, Counci l Member 
Ben Pierce, Council Member 
Lee Chotas, Council Member 

Absent: 
Susan Fortini, Council Member 

Staff: 
Bea Meeks, City Clerk 
John Freeburg, Police Chief 
Shannon Patterson, PD Manager 
Drew Smith, City Attorney 
Ellen Hardgrove, AICP 

I PRESENTATION 

None. 

I CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Review and Approval of Minutes 

• ovember 20, 20 18 City Council Meeting Minutes 

Council Member Chotas moved to approve the minutes as presented; second by Council Jl'lember Pierce. 
Approved (410) 

4 



City Council Minutes December 18, 2018 Page 2 

I ORDINAl\'CES 

1. ORDINANCE 2018-13 - AI" ORDINAJ'\CE BY THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD 
AMENDING THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD CODE OF ORDIP:ANCES CHAPTER 106 TO 
MAKE MODIFICA TIOI"S TO BRING THE REGULATIONS INTO AGREE~ lENT WITH 
THE MOST CURRENT FEMA-APPROVED, CODE-COMPANION FLOODPLAIN 
MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE FOR FLORIDA CON!MUP:ITIES; TO ADOPT NE\\' 
FLOOD HAZARD MAPS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

City Attorney Smith gave the first reading of Ordinance 2019-13 in title only. 

Council President Dowless asked for public comments; there \Yere none. 

Counci/JlJember Pierce made the 1Vlotion to approve the first reading of Ordinance 2018-13; 
second by Cowzcil President Dowless. 

The Motion was approved by the following roll call vote (410): 
Council Jl'fember Chotas- Favor 
Council President Dowless- Favor 
Council 1l'fember Hom- Favor 
Council JY!ember Pierce- Favor 
Council ill ember Fortini- Absent 

2. ORDINANCE 2018-16- AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE 20J8l2019 FIVE YEAR CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ANNUAL UPDATE; PROVIDING FOR LEGISLATIVE 
FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR EXCLUSION FROM 
CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

City Attorney Smith gave the first reading of Ordinance 2018-16 in title only. City Attorney 
Smith said it is part of the Comprehensive Plan Act to stay in compliance with state law. It was 
noted that Planner Hardgrove was prepared to answer any questions that Mayor and Council 
Members might have; there were none. 

Council President Dowless asked for public comments; there were none. 

Council )}[ember Hom made the Motion to approve the first reading of Ordinance 2018-16; 
second by Council !VI ember Pierce. 

The Motion was approved by the following roll call vote (410): 
Council11fember Hom- Favor 
Council 1Vember Pierce
Council President Dowless -
Council Jl'fember Chotas
Council 1Vfember Fortini-

Favor 
Favor 
Favor 
Absent 

5 



City Council Minutes December 18, 2018 Page 3 

PUBLIC HEARINGS (ORDINAl~CES - SECOND READINGS & RELATED ACTION) 

1. ORDINANCE 2018-14- AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA, 
RELATING TO SIGNS; AMENDING CHAPTER I 22 Of THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD 
CODE Of ORDINANCES TO REGULATE ANY LAWFULLY NONCONFORMING 
ELECTRONIC CHANGEABLE MESSAGE SIG1 S; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDfNG FOR CODIFICATION, CONFLICTS, AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

City Attorney Smith gave the second and final reading of Ordinance 2018-1 4 in title 
only. He provided two coiTections to the Ordinance. 

Counc il President Dowless asked for public comments; there were none. 

Council lvfember Horn made the k/otion to approve the secoud ami final reading of 
Ordinauce 2018-14; second by Council President Dowless. 

The Motion was approved by the following roll call vote (4/0): 
Council1l1ember Clwtas- Favor 
Counci1 Jl1ember Pierce- Favor 
Counci! Jl1ember Hom - Favor 
Council President Dowless- Favor 
Council 1l1ember Fortini- Absent 

2. ORDINANCE 2018-15- _AN ORDfNANCE Of THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 134 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATED TO THE 
EDGEWOOD CENTRAL DISTRICT TO CORRECT SCRIVENERS' ERRORS, PROVIDE 
CLARIFICATION OF ADOPTED REGULATIONS AND STANDARDS, AMEND 
CERTAIN DESIGN GUIDELINES AND STANDARDS, AND TO PROVIDE AMENDED 
REGULATIONS RELATED TO CERTAIN LOTS WJTH MULTIPLE FRONTAGES 
ALONG STATE ROAD 527; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

City Attorney Smith gave the second and final reading of Ordinance 2018-1 5 in title 
only. 

Council President Dowless asked for public comments; there were none. 

Council Member Pierce made the kfotion to approve the second and final reading of 
Ordinauce 2018-15; second by Council Member Hom. 

The Motion was approved by the following roll call vole (410): 
Council President Dowless- Favor 
Council Member Hom- Favor 
Counci11l1ember Chotas- Favor 
Council 1l1ember Pierce- Favor 
Counci1 1l1ember Fortini - A bsent 

3. ORDINANCE 2018-12 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA, 
REZONING AND CHANGING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MA.P CLA SSIFI CATION OF 

6 



City Council Minutes December 18, 2018 Page 4 

PROPERTIES LOCATED ALONG THE STATE ROAD 527 CORRIDOR, DESIGNATED 
CO~IMERCIAL ON THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE C0\1PREHENSIVE 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN, AND IDENTIFIED SPECIFICALLY HEREIN, FROM C-1 
(RET AIL COMMERCIAL), C-2 (GENERAL CO:>Ev!ERCIAL, AND C-3 (WHOLESALE 
CO:>!MERCIAL); P-0 (PROFESSIONAL OFFICE); R-3 (MULTIPLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL); AND R-1 (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) TO THE EDGEWOOD 
CENTRAL DISTRICT ZONING DISTRICT; REPEALING ALL CO:-.IFLICT!l\G 
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

City Attorney Smith gave the second and final reading of Ordinance 2018-12 in title 
only. Planner Hardgrove explained that the Ordinance will rezone all the properties in 
the Edgewood Central District (ECD). 

Council President Dowless asked for public comments; there were none. 

Council Jv!ember President Dowless made the 1Uotion to approve the second and final reading 
of Ordinance 2018-12; second by Council Member Horn. 

The Motion was approved by the following roll call vote (410): 
Council1liember Pierce- Favor 
CouncilJv!ember Hom
Council President Dowless
Counci!Jliember C!totas
Council Nfember Fortini-

I UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Favor 
Favor 
Favor 
Absent 

I. City of Edgewood Representative on the Community Action Board (CAB) 

Council President Dowless confirmed that Mayor Bagshaw agreed to serve on the Community 
Action Board. Council President Dowless said that there should also be an alternate member; 
Mayor Bagshaw recommended Council Member Chatas. 

Council l'tlember Pierce made the 1Uotion for approval of Mayor Bagshaw to represent the 
City of Edgewood on the Community Action Board; Second by Council President Dowless. 
Approved 410. 

Council President Dowless made the iVlotion for approval of Council Member Chatas to 
represent the City of Edgewood on the Community Action Board, as an alternate; Second By 
Council Member Horn. Approved 410. 

2. RESOLUTION 20I8-09 - A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING THE FEE SCHEDULE FOR CERTAIN CITY SERVICES; ESTABLISHING A FEE 
FOR ZONING VERJFICATION LETTERS AND A FEE FOR WAIVER APPLICATIONS WITHIN 

7 



City Council Minutes December 18, 2018 Page 5 

THE EDGEWOOD CENTRAL ZO>IING DISTRICT: PROVIDrNG FOR CO)IFLICTS AND 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

City Attorney Smith gave the reading of Resolution 2018-09 in title only. City Attorney Smith 
said this is the entire fee schedule for the City. He noted that the two changes to the schedule 
were the addition of a fee for the application of a waiver from the ECD minimum standards, and 
the addition of a fee for a zoning verification letter. In response to Planner Hardgrove, City 
Attorney Smith said pass-thru fees for the "waiver" will be addressed in a later Ordinance. 

Council President Dowless asked for public comments; there were none. 

Council 1Hember President Dowless made the 1Vlotion to approve Resolution 2018-09; second 
by Council Member Chotas. 

The Motion was approved by the following roll call vote (4/0): 
Council 1Hember Hom- Favor 
Councillvfember Pierce- Favor 
Council President Dowless
Council1Hember Clwtas
Council 1Hember Fortini-

Favor 
Favor 
Absent 

3. RESOLUTION 2018-10 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING RESOLUTION 2013-04 TO CORRECT A SCRIVENER'S ERROR AND TO PERMIT 
THE CITY CLERK TO DESIGNATE AN EXISTING STAFF MEMBER IN THE CITY CLERK'S 
ABSENCE TO ACT AS THE CLERK TO THE LOCAL HEARING OFFICER FOR RED LIGHT 
CAMERA INFRACTION HEARINGS PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 62, ARTICLE IV OF THE 
EDGEWOOD CITY CODE; PROVIDING OF CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

City Attorney Smith gave the reading of Resolution 2018-10 in title only. 

Council President Dowless asked for public comments; there were none. 

City Attorney Smith said that approval of the Resolution will allow the City Clerk to designate 
another staff member to be the red light hearing clerk in her absence. 

Council Member Horn made the Motion to approve Resolution 2018-10; second by Council 
JV!ember Pierce. 

The Motion was approved by the following roll call vote (410): 
Council 1\Iember Chotas- Favor 
Council President Dowless- Favor 
Council 1\Iember Hom- Favor 
Council 1}/ember Pierce- Favor 
Council 11Iember Fortini- Absent 

I GENERAL INFOR.J\1.ATION 

8 



City Council Minutes December 18, 2018 Page 6 

City Attorney Smith announced the 2019 election, as follows: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the City of Edgevmod, Florida will hold a general election on 
Tuesday, March 12, 2019 for the purpose of electing a Mayor and two City Council 1vlembers. 
The candidate elected Mayor will serve a three- year tenn. The candidate with the highest 
number of votes is deemed elected and will serve a three-year term. The candidate with the 
second highest number of votes is deemed elected and will serve a one-year term. Candidates 
may qualify during the period beginning January 14,2019 at 9 a.m. and ending January 18,2019 
at 12 noon, at the Ofllce of the City Clerk, 405 Larue A venue, Edge\\ood, Florida. 

I CITIZEN COMMENTS 

None. 

I BOARDS & COMMITTEES 

None. 

I STAFFREPORTS 

Police Chief Freeburg: 

Council President Dowless said that he asked the Chief to report on active shooter training. Council was 
provided with a handout regarding the training in Edgewood. Chief Freeburg explained to Council the 
training and cooperation with neighboring agencies. 

Chief Freeburg reported that as a result of the donations received in the Police Department and City Hall 
charities, over 500 toys and $1500 in gift cards were given out. 

Chief Freeburg referred to his agenda packet report and asked if there were any questions. Council 
Member Hom asked if Council could be provided with a comparison of the previous month to current 
month. Chief Freeburg said this information will be provided in his monthly reports. 

City Attorney Smith: 

City Attorney Smith had no report however, he thanked Council for approving the rezoning Ordinance. 

City Clerk Meeks: 

City Clerk Meeks provided the following: 

• Announced that the City auditor(s) will be in City Hall the week of January 7, 2019, to 
begin their field work for the 2017/2018 fiscal year audit. 

• Confim1ed that the 2018 mileage report (paved roads) was timely submitted to the 
Florida Department of Transportation. 

• Confirmed that the Census BAS (Boundary Annexation Survey) map was timely 
submitted. 

• Confirmed that there are two outstanding payment requests related to Hurricane lm1a. 

9 



City Council Minutes December 18, 2018 Page 7 

• Updated Council on communications with attorney representing the City in an ADA 
lawsuit. City Clerk Meeks said that an offer for settlement has been made with some 
conditions. City Clerk Meeks sa id she disagreed with the condition requiring the City to 
make available non-ADA compliant documents within forty-eight ( 48) hours. City Clerk 
Meeks said she explained to the Attorney that she did not feel that this is reasonable time. 
City Attorney Smith sa id he agreed with City Clerk Meeks. 

• Confirmed that an Attorney's records request for building and permi tt ing records for a 
house in Legacy is being completed however, it will require outside ass istance with the 
City Engineer. Additionally, due to the nature of the request, the requestor will have to 
make the same request to Orange County for inspection repor1s and related documents. 

I MAYOR & COUNCIL REPORTS 

Mayor Bagshaw-

Mayor Bagshaw provide the following: 

• Confirmed that the City is in the fi nal steps of effecting their quiet zones. The Mayor 
explained the seven steps involved, including the Not ice of Intention and Notice of 
Exemption letters. He said the City can install their ''No Horn" signage 21 days after the 
Notice of Exemption letter is mailed provided there are no objections. 

• Confirmed his meeting with Commi ss ioner Uribe and their discussion regarding the 
County and City goals. 

• Mayor said when the Police Department held their pumpkin carving auction in October, 
this was part of the funding for the Orlando Union Rescue Mission and the Ronald 
McDonald House's Christmas from the City. He said that employees from the Police 
Department and City Hall cooked supper for the Ronald McDonald House guests. Mayor 
Bagshaw said in addition to toys, they gave gift cards (Publ ix-Target), and the Rescue 
Mission received cleaning supplies. 

• Confirmed that Nathaniel's Hope moved into Edgewood Isle. He said they reached out 
and helped 5000 fami lies with Christmas this year. 

• Confirmed that Council President Dowless is working with MetroPian regarding road 
repair(s). Council President Dowless said he sent an email out to find out the repaving 
schedule and to include the area of concern at Harbour Island and Orange Avenue. 

• ln response to Council Member Chotas, Mayor Bagshaw said he is working with Lynx to 
move the bus stop in front of Ft. Gatlin. 

Council President Dowless -

Council President Dowless presented gift cards to Mayor Bagshaw and Mayor's wife Bonnie. 
Council President Dowless said that each Council Member donated towards the gift cards to 
present to the Mayor and his wife. He said it is Council 's 'vvay to say "thank you" for all their 
hard work in the City. 

Council Member Chotas -

o report. 

Council Member Fortini -

Absent. 

10 



City Council Minutes December 18, 2018 Page 8 

Council Member Horn-

No report. 

Council Member Pierce: 

No report. 

I ADJOURNIIIENT 

Having no further business or discussion, Council Member Chatas made a Motion to adjourn; Second by 
Council i\·lember Horn. The City Council meeting adjourned at 7:30p.m. 

John Dm,less 
Council President 

Approved on 

Bea L. Meeks, MMC, CPM, CBTO 
City Clerk 

11 



ORDINANCE NO. 2018-13 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD AMENDING THE CITY OF 
EDGEWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 106 TO MAKE 
MODIFICATIONS TO BRING THE REGULATIONS INTO AGREEMENT WITH 
THE MOST CURRENT FEMA-APPROVED, CODE-COMPANION 
FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE FOR FLORIDA 
COMMUNITIES; TO ADOPT NEW FLOOD HAZARD MAPS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, 
conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed to promote the 
public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry ; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Edgewood participates in the National Flood Insurance Program 
and the City of Edgewood desires to continue to meet the requirements of Title 44 Code of 
Federal Regulations, Sections 59 and 60, necessary for such participation; and 

WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency has revised and reissued the 
Flood Insurance Study for Orange County, Florida and Incorporated Areas, with an effective 
date of June 20, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council determined that it is in the public interest to amend the 
Code of Ordinances Chapter 106, to make modifications to bring the regulations into agreement 
with the most current Model Floodplain Management Ordinance approved by FEMA for Florida 
communities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Edgewood 
that Chapter 106 of the Edgewood Code of Ordinances is amended as set forth in the following 
amendments, as shown in strikethrough and underline format in Section 2. 

SECTION 1. RECITALS. 

The foregoing whereas clauses are incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. 

SECTION 2. This ordinance amends Chapter 106 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Edgewood as follows: 

CHAP"TER 106. FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION. 

ARTICLE 1 ADMINISTRATION 

DIVISION 1 GENERAL 

1 06·1 Title. "These regulations shall be known as the Floodplain Management Ordinance of the 
City of Edgewood, hereinafter referred to as "this ordinance." 

1 06·2 Scope. The provisions of this ord inance shall apply to all development that is wholly within 

1 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

12 



or partially within any flood hazard area, including but not limited to the subdivision of land; filling, 
grading, and other site improvements and utility installations; construction, alteration, remodeling , 
enlargement, improvement, replacement, repair, relocation or demolition of buildings, structures, 
and facilities that are exempt from the Florida Building Code; placement, installation, or replacement 
of manufactured homes and manufactured buildings; installation or replacement of tanks; placement 
of recreational vehicles; installation of swimming pools; and any other development. 

106-3 Intent. The purposes of this ordinance and the flood load and flood resistant construct ion 
requirements of the Florida Building Code are to establish minimum requirements to safeguard 
the public health, safety, and general welfare and to minimize public and private losses due to 
f looding through regulation of development in flood hazard areas to: 

(1) Minimize unnecessary disruption of commerce, access and public service during times 
of f looding; 

(2) Require the use of appropriate construction practices in order to prevent or minimize 
future flood damage; 

(3) Manage filling , grading , dredging, mining, paving, excavation, drilling operations, storage 
of equipment or materials, and other development which may increase flood damage or 
erosion potential; 

(4) Manage the alteration of flood hazard areas, watercourses, and shorel ines to minimize 
the impact of development on the natural and beneficial functions of the floodpla in; 

(5) Minimize damage to public and private facilities and utilities ; 

(6) Help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of flood 
hazard areas; 

(7) Minimize the need for future expenditure of public funds for flood control projects and 
response to and recovery from flood events; and 

(8) Meet the requirements of the National Flood Insurance Program for community 
participation as set forth in the Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations, Section 59.22 .. 

106-4 Coordination with the Florida Building Code. This ordinance is intended to be 
administered and enforced in conjunction with the Florida Building Code. Where cited, ASCE 
24 refers to the edition of the standard that is referenced by the Florida Building Code. 

106-5 Warning. The degree of flood protection required by this ordinance and the Florida Building 
Code, as amended by this community, is considered the minimum reasonable for regulatory 
purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger floods can and will 
occur. Flood heights may be increased by man-made or natural causes. This ordinance does not 
imply that land outside of mapped special flood hazard areas, or that uses permitted within such 
flood hazard areas, will be free from flooding or flood damage. The flood hazard areas and base 
flood elevations contained in the Flood Insurance Study and shown on Flood Insurance Rate Maps 
and the requirements of Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations, Sections 59 and 60 may be 
revised by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, requiring this community to revise these 
regulations to remain eligible for participation in the National Flood Insurance Program. No 
guaranty of vested use, existing use, or future use is implied or expressed by compliance with 
this ordinance. 

1 06·6 Disclaimer of Liability. This ordinance shall not create liability on the part of the City of 

2 
ORDINANCE 20 18-13 

13 



Edgewood or by any officer or employee thereof for any flood damage that results from rel iance 
on this ordinance or any administrative decision lawfully made thereunder. 

Sees. 106-7-1 06-20. - Reserved. 

DIVISION 2 APPLICABILITY 

106-21 General. Where there is a conflict between a general requirement and a specific 
requirement, the specific requirement shall be applicable. 

106-22 Areas to which this ordinance applies. This ordinance shall apply to al l flood hazard 
areas with in the City of Edgewood, as established in Section 106-23 of th is ordinance. 

106-23 Basis for establishing flood hazard areas. 
(a) The areas of special flood hazard identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
in the F lood Insurance Study for Orange County, Florida and Incorporated Areas Gity--ef 
Edgewood, dated September 25, 2009, dated June 20, 2018, with the accompanying maps and 
other supporting data, and any subsequent amendments and revisions thereto, and the 
accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM), and all subsequent amendments and 
revisions to such maps, are adopted by reference and declared to be a part of th is ord inance. 
The Flood Insurance Study and Flood Insurance Rate Map are on f ile at the City of Edgewood 
City Hall, 405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida 32809. 

(b) Submission of additional data to establish flood hazard areas. To establish flood hazard 
areas and base flood elevations, pursuant to Article 1, Division 5 of this ordinance the 
Floodplain Administrator may require submission of additional data. Where field surveyed 
topography prepared by a Florida licensed professional surveyor or dig ital topography accepted 
by the community indicates that ground elevations: 

(1) Are below the closest applicable base flood elevation, even in areas not delineated as a 
special flood hazard area on a FIRM, the area shall be considered as flood hazard area 
and subject to the requirements of this ordinance and, as applicable, the requirements 
of the Florida Building Code. 

(2) Are above the closest applicable base flood elevation, the area shall be regulated as 
special flood hazard area unless the applicant obtains a Letter of Map Change that 
removes the area from the special flood hazard area. 

106-24 Other laws. The provisions of this ordinance shal l not be deemed to nullify any 
provisions of local, state or federal law. 

106-25 Abrogation and greater restrictions. This ordinance supersedes any ordinance in 
effect for management of development in flood hazard areas. However, it is not intended to 
repeal or abrogate any existing ordinances including but not limited to land development 
regulations, zoning ordinances, stormwater management regulations, or the Florida Building 
Code. In the event of a conflict between this ordinance and any other ordinance, the more 
restrictive shall govern. This ordinance shall not impair any deed restriction, covenant or 
easement, but any land that is subject to such interests shall also be governed by this 
ordinance. 

10626 Interpretation. In the interpretation and application of this ordinance, all provisions shall 
be: 

3 
ORDINANCE 20 18 -13 

14 



(1) Considered as minimum requirements; 

(2) Liberally construed in favor of the governing body; and 

(3) Deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under state statutes. 

Secs.106-27-106-50.- Reserved. 

DIVISION 3 DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR 

106-51 Designation. The Mayor of the City of Edgewood is designated as the Floodplain 
Administrator. The Floodplain Administrator may delegate performance of certain duties to other 
employees. 

106-52 General. The Floodplain Administrator is authorized and directed to administer and 
enforce the provisions of this ordinance. The Floodplain Administrator shall have the authority to 
render interpretations of this ordinance consistent with the intent and purpose of this ordinance 
and may establish policies and procedures in order to clarify the application of its provisions. 
Such interpretations, policies, and procedures shall not have the effect of waiving requirements 
specifically provided in this ordinance without the granting of a variance pursuant to Article I, 
Division 7 of this ordinance. 

106-53 Applications and permits. The Floodplain Administrator, in coordination with other 
pertinent offices of the community, shall: 

(1) Review applications and plans to determine whether proposed new development will be 
located in flood hazard areas; 

(2) Review applications for modification of any existing development in flood hazard areas 
for compliance with the requirements of this ordinance; 

(3) Interpret flood hazard area boundaries where such interpretation is necessary to 
determine the exact location of boundaries; a person contesting the determination shall 
have the opportunity to appeal the interpretation; 

(4) Provide available flood elevation and flood hazard information; 

(5) Determine whether additional flood hazard data shall be obtained from other sources or 
shall be developed by an applicant; 

(6) Review applications to determine whether proposed development will be reasonably 
safe from flooding; 

(7) Issue floodplain development permits or approvals for development other than buildings 
and structures that are subject to the Florida Building Code, including buildings, 
structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code, when compliance with 
this ordinance is demonstrated, or disapprove the same in the event of noncompliance; 
and 

(8) Coordinate with and provide comments to the Building Official to assure that 
applications, plan reviews, and inspections for buildings and structures in flood hazard 
areas comply with the applicable provisions of this ordinance. 

106-54 Substantial improvement and substantial damage determinations Determinations 
for existing b~ildings ami str~ct~res. For applications for building permits to improve 
buildings and structures, including alterations, movement, enlargement, replacement, repair, 

4 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

15 



change of occupancy, additions, rehabilitations , renovations , substantial improvements, repai rs 
of substantial damage, and any other improvement of or work on such buildings and structures, 
the Floodplain Administrator, in coordination with the Building Official , shall: 

(1) Estimate the market value, or require the applicant to obtain an appraisal of the market 
value prepared by a qualified independent appraiser, of the building or structure before 
the start of construction of the proposed work; in the case of repair, the market value of 
the building or structure shall be the market value before the damage occurred and 
before any repairs are made; 

(2) Compare the cost to perform the improvement, the cost to repair a damaged building to 
its pre-damaged condition, or the combined costs of improvements and repa irs, if 
applicable, to the market value of the building or structure; 

(3) Determine and document whether the proposed work constitutes substantial 
improvement or repair of substantial damage; and 

(4) Notify the applicant if it is determined that the work constitutes substantial improvement 
or repair of substantial damage and that compliance with the flood resistant construction 
requirements of the Florida Building Code and th is ordinance is required . 

106-55 Modifications of the strict application of the requirements of the Florida Building 
Code. The Floodplain Administrator shall review requests submitted to the Building Official that 
seek approval to modify the strict application of the flood load and f lood resistant construction 
requirements of the Florida Building Code to determine whether such requests require the 
granting of a variance pursuant to Article I, Division 7 of th is ordinance. 

106-56 Notices and orders. The Floodplain Administrator shall coordinate with appropriate 
local agencies for the issuance of all necessary notices or orders to ensure compliance with this 
ordinance. 

1 06-571nspections. The Floodplain Administrator shall make the required inspections as 
specified in Article I, Division 6 of this ordinance for development that is not subject to the 
Florida Building Code, including buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida 
Building Code. The Floodplain Administrator shall inspect flood hazard areas to determine if 
development is undertaken without issuance of a permit. 

106-58 Other duties of the Floodplain Administrator. The Floodplain Administrator shall 
have other duties, including but not limited to: 

(1) Establish, in coordination with the Building Official , procedures for administering and 
documenting determinations of substantial improvement and substantial damage made 
pursuant to Section 1 06-54 of this ordinance; 

(2) Require that applicants proposing alteration of a watercourse notify adjacent 
communities and the Florida Division of Emergency Management, State Floodplain 
Management Office, and submit copies of such notifications to the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA); 

(3) Require applicants who submit hydrologic and hydraulic engineering analyses to support 
permit applications to submit to FEMA the data and information necessary to maintain 
the Flood Insurance Rate Maps if the analyses propose to change base flood elevations , 
flood hazard area boundaries, or floodway designations; such submissions shall be 
made within 6 months of such data becoming available; 

5 
ORD INANCE 20 18-13 

16 



(4) Review required design certifications and documentation of elevations specified by this 
ordinance and the Florida Building Code and this ordinaRce to determine that such 
certifications and documentations are complete; and 

(5) Notify the Federal Emergency Management Agency when the corporate boundaries of 
the City of Edgewood are modified. 

106-59 Floodplain management records. Regardless of any limitation on the period required 
for retention of public records, the Floodplain Administrator shall maintain and permanently keep 
and make available for public inspection all records that are necessary for the administration of 
this ordinance and the flood resistant construction requirements of the Florida Building Code, 
including Flood Insurance Rate Maps; Letters of Map Change; records of issuance of permits 
and denial of permits; determinations of whether proposed work constitutes substantial 
improvement or repair of substantial damage; required design certifications and documentation 
of elevations specified by the Florida Building Code and this ordinance; notifications to adjacent 
communities, FEMA, and the state related to alterations of watercourses; assurances that the 
flood carrying capacity of altered watercourses will be maintained; documentation related to 
appeals and variances, including justification for issuance or denial; and records of enforcement 
actions taken pursuant to this ordinance and the flood resistant construction requirements of the 
Florida Building Code. These records shall be available for public inspection at City of 
Edgewood City Hall, 405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida 32809 

Sees. 106-60-106-80.- Reserved. 

DIVISION 4 PERMITS 

106-81 Permits required. Any owner or owner's authorized agent (hereinafter "applicant") who 
intends to undertake any development activity within the scope of this ordinance, including 
buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code, which is wholly within 
or partially within any flood hazard area shall first make application to the Floodplain 
Administrator, and the Building Official if applicable, and shall obtain the required permit(s) and 
approval(s). No such permit or approval shall be issued until compliance with the requirements of 
this ordinance and all other applicable codes and regulations has been satisfied. 

106-82 Floodplain development permits or approvals. 
(a) Floodplain development permits or approvals shall be issued pursuant to this ordinance 

for any development activities not subject to the requirements of the Florida Building Code, 
including buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code. Depending 
on the nature and extent of proposed development that includes a building or structure, the 
Floodpla·ln Administrator may determine that a fioodplain development permit or approval is requked 
in addition to a building permit. 

(b) Buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code. Pursuant to the 
requirements of federal regulation for participation in the National Flood Insurance Program (44 
C.F.R. Sections 59 and 60), floodplain development permits or approvals shall be required for 
the following buildings, structures and facilities that are exempt from the Florida Building Code 
and any further exemptions provided by law, which are subject to the requirements of this 
ordinance: 

(1) Railroads and ancillary facilities associated with the railroad. 

(2) Nonresidential farm buildings on farms, as provided in section 604.50, F.S. 

6 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

17 



(3) Temporary buildings or sheds used exclusively for construction purposes. 

(4) Mobile or modular structures used as temporary offices. 

(5) Those structures or facilities of electric utilities, as defined in section 366.02, F.S., which 
are directly involved in the generation, transmission, or distribution of electricity. 

(6) Chickees constructed by the Miccosukee Tribe of Indians of Florida or the Seminole 
Tribe of Florida. As used in this paragraph, the term "chickee" means an open-sided 
wooden hut that has a thatched roof of palm or palmetto or other traditional materials, 
and that does not incorporate any electrical, plumbing, or other non-wood features. 

(7) Family mausoleums not exceeding 250 square feet in area which are prefabricated and 
assembled on site or preassembled and delivered on site and have walls, roofs, and a 
floor constructed of granite, marble, or reinforced concrete 

(8) Temporary housing provided by the Department of Corrections to any prisoner in the 
state correctional system. 

(9) Structures identified in section 553.73(10)(k), F.S., are not exempt from the Florida 
Building Code if such structures are located in flood hazard areas established on Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps 

106-83 Application for a permit or approval. To obtain a floodplain development permit or 
approval the applicant shall first file an application in writing on a form furnished by the 
community. The information provided shall: 

(1) Identify and describe the development to be covered by the permit or approval. 

(2) Describe the land on which the proposed development is to be conducted by legal 
description, street address or similar description that will readily identify and definitively 
locate the site. 

(3) Indicate the use and occupancy for which the proposed development is intended. 

(4) Be accompanied by a site plan or construction documents as specified in Article I, 
Division 5 of this ordinance. 

(5) State the valuation of the proposed work. 

(6) Be signed by the applicant or the applicant's authorized agent. 

(7) Give such other data and information as required by the Floodplain Administrator. 

106-84 Validity of permit or approval. The issuance of a floodplain development permit or 
approval pursuant to this ordinance shall not be construed to be a permit for, or approval of, any 
violation of this ordinance, the Florida Building Codes, or any other ordinance of this community. 
The issuance of permits based on submitted applications, construction documents, and 
information shall not prevent the Floodplain Administrator from requiring the correction of errors 
and omissions. 

106-85 Expiration. A floodplain development permit or approval shall become invalid unless the 
work authorized by such permit is commenced within 180 days after its issuance, or if the work 
authorized is suspended or abandoned for a period of 180 days after the work commences. 
Extensions for periods of not more than 180 days each shall be requested in writing and 
justifiable cause shall be demonstrated. 

7 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

18 



106-86 Suspension or revocation. The Floodplain Administrator is authorized to suspend or 
revoke a floodplain development permit or approval if the permit was issued in error, on the 
basis of incorrect, inaccurate or incomplete information , or in violation of th is ordinance or any 
other ordinance, regulation or requirement of this community. 

106-87 Other permits required. Floodplain development permits and building permits shall 
include a condition that all other applicable state or fede ral permits be obtained before 
commencement of the permitted development, including but not limited to the following: 

(1) The St. Johns River Water Management District; section 373.036, F.S. 

(2) Florida Department of Health for on site sewage treatment and disposal systems; section 
381 .0065, F .S. and Chapter 64E-6, F.A.C. 

(3) Florida Department of Environmental Protection for activities subject to the Joint Coastal 
Permit; section 161.055, F.S. 

(4) Florida Department of Envi ronmental Protection for activities that affect wetlands and 
alter surface water flows, in conjunction with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; Section 
404 of the Clean Water Act. 

(5) Federal permits and approvals. 

Sees. 106-88- 106-110. - Reserved. 

DIVISION 5 SITE PLANS AND CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 

106-111 Information for development in flood hazard areas. The site plan or construction 
documents for any development subject to the requirements of this ordinance shall be drawn to 
scale and shall include, as applicable to the proposed development: 

(1) Delineation of f lood hazard areas, floodway boundaries and flood zone(s) , base flood 
elevation(s), and ground elevations if necessary for review of the proposed 
development. 

(2) Where flood hazard areas, base flood elevations, or floodway data are not included on 
the FIRM or in the Flood Insurance Study, they shall be established in accordance with 
Section 1 06-112(2) or (3) of this ordinance. 

(3) Where the parcel on which the proposed development will t ake place will have more 
than 50 lots or is larger than 5 acres and the base flood elevations are not included on 
the FI RM or in the Flood Insurance Study, such elevations shall be established in 
accordance with Section 106-112(1) ef-{-2j of this ord inance. 

(4) Location of the proposed activity and proposed structures, and locations of existing 
bu ildings and structures. 

(5) Location, extent, amount, and proposed f inal grades of any fill ing, grading, or 
excavation. 

(6) Where the placement of fill is proposed, the amount, type, a nd source of fil l material ; 
compaction specifications; a description of the intended purpose of the f ill areas; and 
evidence that the proposed fill areas are the minimum necessary to achieve the intended 
purpose. 

(7) Existing and proposed alignment of any proposed alteration of a watercourse. 

8 
ORDINANCE 201 8-13 

19 



The Floodplain Administrator is authorized to waive the submission of site plans, construction 
documents, and other data that are required by this ordinance but that are not required to be 
prepared by a registered design professional if it is found that the nature of the proposed 
development is such that the review of such submissions is not necessary to ascertain 
compliance with th is ordinance. 

106-112 Information in flood hazard areas without base flood elevations (approximate 
Zone A). Where flood hazard areas are delineated on the FIRM and base flood elevation data 
have not been provided, the Floodplain Administrator shall : 

(1) Require the applicant to include base flood elevation data prepared in accordance with 
currently accepted engineering practices. 

(2) Obtain, review, and provide to applicants base flood elevation and floodway data 
available from a federal or state agency or other source or requ ire the applicant to 
obtain and use base flood elevation and floodway data available from a federal or state 
agency or other source~. 

(3) Where base flood elevation and floodway data are not available from another source, 
where the available data are deemed by the Floodplain Administrator to not reasonably 
reflect flooding conditions, or where the available data are known to be scientifically or 
technically incorrect or otherwise inadequate: 

(a) Require the applicant to include develop base flood elevation data prepared 
in accordance with currently accepted engineering practices; or 

(b) Specify that the base flood elevation is two (2) feet above the highest 
adjacent grade at the location of the development, provided there is no 
evidence indicating flood depths have been or may be greater than two (2) 
feet. 

(4) Where the base flood elevation data are to be used to support a Letter of Map Change 
from FEMA, advise the applicant that the analyses shall be prepared by a Florida 
licensed engineer in a format required by FEMA, and that it shall be the responsibility of 
the applicant to satisfy the submittal requirements and pay the processing fees. 

106-113 Additional analyses and certifications. As applicable to the location and nature of 
the proposed development activity, and in addition to the requirements of this section, the 
applicant shall have the following analyses signed and sealed by a Florida licensed engineer for 
submission with the site plan and construction documents: 

(1) For development activities proposed to be located in a regulatory floodway, a floodway 
encroachment analysis that demonstrates that the encroachment of the proposed 
development will not cause any increase in base flood elevations; where the applicant 
proposes to undertake development activities that do increase base flood elevations, the 
applicant shall submit such analysis to FEMA as specified in Section 106-114 of this 
ordinance and shall submit the Conditional Letter of Map Revision, if issued by FEMA, 
with the site plan and construction documents. 

(2) For development activities proposed to be located in a riverine flood hazard area for 
which base flood elevations are included in the Flood Insurance Study or on the FIRM 
and floodways have not been designated, hydrologic and hydraulic analyses that a 
flood'Nay encroachment analysis which_ demonstrates that the cumulative effect of the 
proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated flood 

9 
ORDINANCE 2 0 18 -13 

20 



hazard area encroachments, will not increase the base flood elevation more than one (1) 
foot at any point wi thin the community. This requirement does not apply in isolated flood 
hazard areas not connected to a riverine flood hazard area or in flood hazard areas 
identified as Zone AO or Zone AH. 

(3) For alteration of a watercourse, an engineering analysis prepared in accordance with 
standard engineering practices which demonstrates that the flood-carrying capacity of 
the altered or relocated portion of the watercourse will not be decreased, and 
certification that the altered watercourse shall be maintained in a manner which 
preserves the channel's flood-carrying capacity; the applicant sha ll submit the analysis to 
FEMA as specified in Section 1 06-11 4 of this ordinance. 

106-114 Submission of additional data. When additional hydrologic, hydraulic or other 
engineering data, studies, and additional analyses are submitted to support an application, the 
applicant has the right to seek a Letter of Map Change from FEMA to change the base flood 
elevations, change floodway boundaries, or change boundaries of flood hazard areas shown on 
FIRMs, and to submit such data to FEMA for such purposes. The analyses shall be prepared 
by a Florida licensed engineer in a format requi red by FEMA. Submittal requirements and 
processing fees shall be the responsibility of the applicant. 

Se es. 106-1 15- 106-130. - Re se rve d. 

DIVISION 6 INSPECTIONS 

106-131 Development for which a f loodplain development permit or approval is required shall be 
subject to inspection. 

(1) Development other than buildings and structures. The Floodplain Administrator shall inspect 
all development to determine compliance with the requirements of this ordinance and the 
conditions of issued floodplain development permits or approvals. 

(2) Buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code. The Floodplain 
Administrator shall inspect buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building 
Code to determine compliance with the requirements of this ordinance and the conditions of 
issued floodplain development permits or approvals. 

a. Buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code, lowest floor 
inspection. Upon placement of the lowest floor, including basement, and prior to further vertical 
construction, the owner of a building, structure or facility exempt from the Florida Building Code, 
or the owner's authorized agent, shall submit to the Floodplain Administrator: 

(1)1f a design flood elevation was used to determine the required elevation of the 
lowest floor, the certification of elevation of the lowest floor prepared and sealed by 
a Florida licensed professional surveyor; or 

(2)1f the elevation used to determine the required elevation of the lowest f loor was 
determined in accordance with Section 1 06-11 2Q}{Ql~. of this ordinance, the 
documentation of height of the lowest f loor above highest adjacent grade, prepared 
by the owner or the owner's authorized agent. 

b. Buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code, final inspection. 
As part of the f inal inspection, the owner or owner's authorized agent shall submit to the 

10 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

21 



Floodplain Administrator a final certification of elevation of the lowest floor or final 
documentation of the height of the lowest floor above the highest adjacent grade; such 
cert ifications and documentations shall be prepared as specified in Section 1 06-131 (2) (a) of this 
ordinance. 

(3) Manufactured homes. The Building Official shall inspect manufactured homes that are 
installed or replaced in flood hazard areas to determine compliance with the requirements of this 
ordinance and the conditions of the issued permit . Upon placement of a manufactured home, 
certification of the elevation of the lowest floor shall be submitted to the Bui lding Offi cial. 

Sees. 106-132-106-150. - Reserved. 

DIVISION 7 VARIANCES AND APPEALS 

106-151 General. The Planning and Zoning Commission shall hear and decide on requests for 
appeals and requests for variances from the strict application of this ordinance. Pursuant to 
section 553. 73(5), F.S. , the Planning and Zoning Commission shall hear and decide on 
requests for appeals and requests for variances from the strict appl ication of the flood resistant 
construction requirements of the Florida Building Code. 

1 06·152 Appeals. The Planning and Zoning Commission shall hear and decide appeals when 
it is alleged there is an error in any requirement, decision, or determination made by the 
Floodplain Administrator in the administration and enforcement of this ordinance. Any person 
aggrieved by the decision of the Planning and Zoning Commission may appeal such decision to 
the Circuit Court, as provided by Florida Statutes. 

106-153 Limitations on authority to grant variances. 
(a) The Planning and Zoning Commission shall base its decisions on variances on 

technical justifications submitted by applicants, the considerations for issuance in Section 106-
156 of this ordinance, the conditions of issuance set forth in Section 106-157 of this ordinance, 
and the comments and recommendations of the Floodplain Administrator and the Building 
Official. The Planning and Zoning Commission has the right to attach such conditions as it 
deems necessary to further the purposes and objectives of this ordinance. 

(b) Restrictions in floodways. A variance shall not be issued for any proposed 
development in a floodway if any increase in base flood elevations would result, as evidenced 
by the applicable analyses and certifications required in Section 106-113 of this ordinance. 

106-154 Historic buildings. A variance is authorized to be issued for the repair, improvement, 
or rehabilitation of a historic building that is determined eligible for the exception to the flood 
resistant construction requirements of the Florida Building Code, Existing Building, Chapter 11 
Historic Build ings, upon a determination that the proposed repair, improvement, or rehabilitation 
will not preclude the building's continued designation as a historic building and the variance is 
the mi nimum necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the building. If the 
proposed work precludes the building's continued designation as a historic building, a variance 
shall not be granted and the building and any repair, improvement, and rehabi litation shall be 
subject to the requirements of the Florida Building Code. 

106-155 Functionally dependent uses. A variance is authorized to be issued for the 
construction or substantial improvement necessary for the conduct of a functionally dependent 
use, as defined in this ordinance, provided the variance meets the requ irements of Section 106-

11 
ORDI NANCE 2 01 8 - 13 

22 



153(b), is the minimum necessary considering the flood hazard, and all due consideration has 
been given to use of methods and materials that minimize flood damage during occurrence of 
the base flood. 

106-156 Considerations for issuance of variances. In reviewing requests for variances, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission shall consider all technical evaluations, all relevant factors, all 
other applicable provisions of the Florida Building Code, this ordinance, and the following: 

(1) The danger that materials and debris may be swept onto other lands resulting in further 
injury or damage; 

(2) The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage; 

(3) The susceptibility of the proposed development, including contents, to flood damage and 
the effect of such damage on current and future owners; 

(4) The importance of the services provided by the proposed development to the 
community; 

(5) The availability of alternate locations for the proposed development that are subject to 
lower risk of flooding or erosion; 

(6) The compatibility of the proposed development with existing and anticipated 
development; 

(7) The relationship of the proposed development to the comprehensive plan and floodplain 
management program for the area; 

(8) The safety of access to the property in times of flooding for ordinary and emergency 
vehicles; 

(9) The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and debris and sediment transport 
of the floodwaters and the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the site; and 

(10) The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions 
including maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities such as sewer. gas, 
electrical and water systems, streets and bridges. 

106-157 Conditions for issuance of variances. Variances shall be issued only upon: 

(1) Submission by the applicant, of a showing of good and sufficient cause that the unique 
characteristics of the size, configuration, or topography of the site limit compliance with 
any provision of this ordinance or the required elevation standards; 

. (2) Determination by the Planning and Zoning Commission that: 

(a) Failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship due to the 
physical characteristics of the land that render the lot undevelopable; increased 
costs to satisfy the requirements or inconvenience do not constitute hardship; 

(b) The granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional 
threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, nor create nuisances, 
cause fraud on or victimization of the public or conflict with existing local laws 
and ordinances; and 

(c) The variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford 
relief; 

(3) Receipt of a signed statement by the applicant that the variance, if granted, shall be 

12 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

23 



recorded in the Office of the Clerk of the Court in such a manner that it appears in the 
chain of title of the affected parcel of land; and 

(4) If the request is for a variance to allow construction of the lowest floor of a new building, 
or substantial improvement of a building, below the required elevation, a copy in the 
record of a written notice from the Floodplain Administrator to the applicant for the 
variance, specifying the difference between the base flood elevation and the proposed 
elevation of the lowest floor, stating that the cost of federal flood insurance will be 
commensurate with the increased risk resulting from the reduced floor elevation (up to 
amounts as high as $25 for $100 of insurance coverage), and stating that construction 
below the base flood elevation increases risks to life and property. 

Sees. 106-158-106-180.- Reserved. 

SECTION 108 VIOLATIONS 

106-181 Violations. Any development that is not within the scope of the Florida Building Code 
but that is regulated by this ordinance that is performed without an issued permit, that is in 
confiict with an issued permit, or that does not fully comply with this ordinance, shall be deemed 
a violation of this ordinance. A building or structure without the documentation of elevation of 
the lowest floor, other required design certifications, or other evidence of compliance required 
by this ordinance or the Florida Building Code is presumed to be a violation until such time as 
that documentation is provided. 

106-182 Authority. For development that is not within the scope of the Florida Building Code 
but that is regulated by this ordinance and that is determined to be a violation, the Floodplain 
Administrator is authorized to serve notices of violation or stop work orders to owners of the 
property involved, to the owner's agent, or to the person or persons performing the work. 

106-183 Unlawful continuance. Any person who shall continue any work after having been 
served with a notice of violation or a stop work order, except such work as that person is 
directed to perform to remove or remedy a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to 
penalties as prescribed by law. 

Sees. 106-184-106-200.- Reserved. 

ARTICLE 2 DEFINITIONS 

DIVISION 1 GENERAL 

106-201 Scope. Unless otherwise expressly stated, the following words and terms shall, for the 
purposes of this ordinance, have the meanings shown in this section. 

106-202 Terms defined in the Florida Building Code. Where terms are not defined in this 
ordinance and are defined in the Florida Building Code, such terms shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in that code. 

1 06·203 Terms not defined. Where terms are not defined in this ordinance or the Florida 
Building Code, such terms shall have ordinarily accepted meanings such as the context implies. 

13 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

24 



Sees. 106-204-106-220.- Reserved. 

DIVISION 2 DEFINITIONS 

106-221 Terms defined. 

Alteration of a watercourse. A dam, impoundment, channel relocation, change in channel 
alignment, channelization, or change in cross-sectional area of the channel or the channel 
capacity, or any other form of modification which may alter, impede, retard or change the 
direction and/or velocity of the riverine flow of water during conditions of the base flood. 

Appeal. A request for a review of the Floodplain Administrator's interpretation of any provision 
of this ordinance or a request lor a varianse. 

ASCE 24. A standard titled Flood Resistant Design and Construction that is referenced by the 
Florida Building Code. ASCE 24 is developed and published by the American Society of Civil 
Engineers, Reston, VA. 

Base flood. A flood having a 1-percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given 
year. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2.] The base flood is commonly referred to as the 
"100-year flood" or the "1-percent-annual chance flood." 

Base flood elevation. The elevation of the base flood, including wave height, relative to the 
National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD), North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) or other 
datum specified on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM). [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 
16122] 

Basement. The portion of a building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all sides. 
[Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2.] 

Design flood. The flood associated with the greater of the following two areas: [Also defined in 
FBC, B, Section 1612.2.] 

(1) Area with a floodplain subject to a 1-percent or greater chance of flooding in any year; or 

(2) Area designated as a flood hazard area on the community's flood hazard map, or 
otherwise legally designated. 

Design flood elevation. The elevation of the "design flood," including wave height, relative to 
the datum specified on the community's legally designated flood hazard map. In areas 
designated as Zone AO, the design flood elevation shall be the elevation of the highest existing 
grade of the building's perimeter plus the depth number (in feet) specified on the flood hazard 
map. In areas designated as Zone AO where the depth number is not specified on the map, the 
depth number shall be taken as being equal to 2 feet. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2.] 

Development. Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including but not 
limited to, buildings or other structures, tanks, temporary structures, temporary or permanent 
storage of equipment or materials, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavations, drilling 
operations or any other land disturbing activities. 

Encroachment. The placement of fill, excavation, buildings, permanent structures or other 
development into a flood hazard area which may impede or alter the flow capacity of riverine 

14 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

25 



flood hazard areas. 

Existing building and existing structure. Any buildings and structures for which the "start of 
construction" commenced before January 16, 1988. [Also defined in F8C, B, Section 1612.2.] 

Existing manufactured home park or subdivision. A manufactured home park or subdivision 
for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes 
are to be affixed (including, at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, 
and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before January 16, 
1988. 

Expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision. The preparation of 
additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured 
homes are to be affixed (including the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and 
either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads). 

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). The federal agency that, in addition to 
carrying out other functions, administers the National Flood Insurance Program. 

Flood or flooding. A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of 
normally dry land from: [Also defined in F8C, 8, Section 1612.2] 

(1) The overflow of inland or tidal waters. 

{2) The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source. 

Flood damage-resistant materials. Any construction material capable of withstanding direct 
and prolonged contact with floodwaters without sustaining any damage that requires more than 
cosmetic repair. [Also defined in F8C, 8, Section 1612.2.] 

Flood hazard area. The greater of the following two areas: [Also defined in F8C, 8, Section 
16122] 

(1) The area within a floodplain subject to a 1-percent or greater chance of flooding in any 
year. 

(2) The area designated as a flood hazard area on the community's flood hazard map, or 
otherwise legally designated. 

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM). The official map of the community on which the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency has delineated both special flood hazard areas and the risk 
premium zones applicable to the community. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2.] 

Flood Insurance Study (FIS). The official report provided by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency that contains the Flood Insurance Rate Map, the Flood Boundary and 
Floodway Map (if applicable), the water surface elevations of the base flood, and supporting 
technical data. [Also defined in F8C, 8, Section 1612.2.] 

Floodplain Administrator. The office or position designated and charged with the 
administration and enforcement of this ordinance (may be referred to as the Floodplain 
Manager). 

Floodplain development permit or approval. An official document or certificate issued by the 

15 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

26 



community, or other evidence of approval or concurrence, which authorizes performance of 
specific development activities that are located in fl ood hazard areas and that are determ ined to 
be compliant with this ordinance. 

Floodway. The channel of a river or other riverine watercourse and the adjacent land areas 
that must be reseNed in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the 
water surface elevation more than one (1) foot. [Also defined in FBC, 8 , Section 1612.2.] 

Floodway encroachment analysis. An engineering analysis of the impact that a proposed 
encroachment into a floodway is expected to have on the floodway boundaries and base flood 
elevations; the evaluation shall be prepared by a qualified Florida licensed engineer using 
standard engineering methods and models. 

Florida Building Code. The family of codes adopted by the Florida Building Commission, 
including: Florida Building Code, Building; Florida Building Code, Residential; Florida Building 
Code, Existing Building; Florida Building Code, Mechanical; Florida Building Code, Plumbing; 
Florida Building Code, Fuel Gas. 

Functionally dependent use. A use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is 
located or carried out in close proximity to water, including only docking facilities, port facil ities 
that are necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and 
ship repair facilities; the term does not include long-term storage or related manufacturing 
facilities. 

Highest adjacent grade. The highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to 
construction next to the proposed walls or foundation of a structure. 

Historic structure. Any structure that is determined eligible for the exception to the flood 
hazard area requirements of the Florida Building Code, Existing Building, Chapter 4-+.:J.l Historic 
Buildings. 

Letter of Map Change (LOMC). An official determination issued by FEMA that amends or 
revises an effective Flood Insurance Rate Map or Flood Insurance Study. Letters of Map 
Change include: 

Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA): An amendment based on technical data showing 
that a property was incorrectly included in a designated special flood hazard area. A 
LOMA amends the current effective Flood Insurance Rate Map and establishes that a 
specific property, portion of a property, or structure is not located in a special flood 
hazard area. 
Letter of Map Revision (LOMR): A revision based on technical data that may show 
changes to flood zones, flood elevations, specia l flood hazard area boundaries and 
floodway delineations, and other planimetric features. 
Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F): A determination that a structure or 
parcel of land has been elevated by fill above the base flood elevation and is, therefore, 
no longer located within the special flood hazard area. In order to qualify for th is 
determination, the fil l must have been permitted and placed in accordance with the 
community's floodplain management regulations. 
Conditiona l Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR): A formal review and comment as to 
whether a proposed flood protection project or other project compl ies with the minimum 
NFIP requirements for such projects with respect to delineation of special flood hazard 
areas. A CLOMR does not revise the effective Flood Insurance Rate Map or Flood 

16 
ORDINANCE 2018- 13 

27 



Insurance Study; upon submission and approval of certified as-built documentation, a 
Letter of Map Revision may be issued by FEMA to revise the effective FIRM. 

Light-duty truck. As defined in 40 C.F.R 86.082-2, any motor vehicle rated at 8,500 pounds 
Gross Vehicular Weight Rating or less which has a vehicular curb weight of 6,000 pounds or 
less and which has a basic vehicle frontal area of 45 square feet or less, which is: 

(1) Designed primarily for purposes of transportation of property or is a derivation of such a 
vehicle, or 

(2) Designed primarily for transportation of persons and has a capacity of more than 12 
persons; or 

(3) Available with special features enabling off-street or off-highway operation and use. 

Lowest floor. The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area of a building or structure, including 
basement, but excluding any unfinished or flood-resistant enclosure, other than a basement, 
usable solely for vehicle parking, building access or limited storage provided that such 
enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the non-elevation requirements 
of the Florida Building Code or ASCE 24. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2.] 

Manufactured home. A structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is eight (8) feet 
or more in width and greater than four hundred (400) square feet, and which is built on a 
permanent, integral chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation 
when attached to the required utilities. The term "manufactured home" does not include a 
"recreational vehicle" or "park trailer." [Also defined in 15C-1.0101, F.A.C] 

Manufactured home park or subdivision. A parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land divided 
into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale. 

Market value. The price at which a property will change hands between a willing buyer and a 
willing seller, neither party being under compulsion to buy or sell and both having reasonable 
knowledge of relevant facts. As used in this ordinance, the term refers to the market value of 
buildings and structures, excluding the land and other improvements on the parcel. Market 
value may be established by a qualified independent appraiser, Actual Cash Value 
(replacement cost depreciated for age and quality of construction), or tax assessment value 
adjusted to approximate market value by a factor provided by the Property Appraiser. 

New construction. For the purposes of administration of this ordinance and the flood resistant 
construction requirements of the Florida Building Code, structures for which the "start of 
construction" commenced on or after January 16, 1988and includes any subsequent 
improvements to such structures. 

New manufactured home park or subdivision. A manufactured home park or subdivision for 
which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to 
be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and 
either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after January 16, 
1988}. 

Park trailer. A transportable unit which has a body width not exceeding fourteen (14) feet and 
which is built on a single chassis and is designed to provide seasonal or temporary living 
quarters when connected to utilities necessary for operation of installed fixtures and appliances. 
[Defined in section 320.01, F.S. 15C 1.01 Q1 F.A.C.] 

17 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

28 



Recreational vehicle. A vehicle, including a park trailer, which is: [Defined in See section 
320.01 f91, F S) 

(1) Built on a single chassis; 

(2) Four hundred (400) square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal 
projection; 

(3) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light-duty truck; and 

(4) Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters 
for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use. 

Special flood hazard area. An area in the floodplain subject to a 1 percent or greater chance of 
flooding in any given year. Special flood hazard areas are shown on FIRMs as Zone A, AO, 
A 1-A30, AE, A99, AH, V1-V30, VE or V. [Also defined in FBC, B Section 1612.2.] 

Start of construction. The date of issuance of permits for new construction and substantial 
improvements to existing structures, provided the actual start of construction, repair, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement is within 180 days of 
the date of the issuance. The actual start of construction means either the first placement of 
permanent construction of a building (including a manufactured home) on a site, such as the 
pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns. 

Permanent construction does not include land preparation (such as clearing, grading, or 
filling), the installation of streets or walkways, excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or 
foundations, the erection of temporary forms or the installation of accessory buildings such as 
garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main buildings. For a 
substantial improvement, the actual "start of construction" means the first alteration of any wall, 
ceiling, floor or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the 
external dimensions of the building. (Also defined in FBC, B Section 1612.2.] 

Substantial damage. Damage of any origin sustained by a building or structure whereby the 
cost of restoring the building or structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed 
50 percent of the market value of the building or structure before the damage occurred. [Also 
defined in FBC, B Section 1612.2.] 

Substantial improvement. Any repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other 
improvement of a building or structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the 
market value of the building or structure before the improvement or repair is started. If the 
structure has incurred "substantial damage," any repairs are considered substantial 
improvement regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term does not, however, 
include either: [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2.] 

(1) Any project for improvement of a building required to correct existing health, sanitary, or 
safety code violations identified by the building official and that are the minimum 
necessary to assure safe living conditions. 

(2) Any alteration of a historic structure provided the alteration will not preclude the 
structure's continued designation as a historic structure. [See Instructions and Notes] 

Variance. A grant of relief from the requirements of this ordinance, or the flood resistant 
construction requirements of the Florida Building Code, which permits construction in a manner 
that would not otherwise be permitted by this ordinance or the Florida Building Code. 

18 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

29 



Watercourse. A river, creek, stream, channel or other topographic feature in, on, through, or 
over which water flows at least periodically. 

Sees. 106-222-106-240.- Reserved. 

ARTICLE 3 FLOOD RESISTANT DEVELOPMENT 

DIVISION 1 BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES 

106-241 Design and construction of buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the 
Florida Building Code. Pursuant to Section 1 06-82(b) of this ordinance, buildings, structures, 
and facilities that are exempt from the Florida Building Code, including substantial improvement or 
repair of substantial damage of such buildings, structures and facilities, shall be designed and 
conslructed in accordance with the flood load and flood resistant construction requirements of 
ASCE 24. Structures exempt from the Florida Building Code that are not walled and roofed buildings 
shall comply with the requirements of Section 307 Article IlL Division 7 of this ordinance. 

Sees. 106-242-106-260.- Reserved. 

DIVISION 2 SUBDIVISIONS 

106-261 Minimum requirements. Subdivision proposals, including proposals for manufactured 
home parks and subdivisions, shall be reviewed to determine that 

(1) Such proposals are consistent with the need to minimize flood damage and will be 
reasonably safe from flooding; 

(2) All public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electric, communications, and water 
systems are located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage; and 

(3) Adequate drainage is provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards; in Zones AH and 
AO, adequate drainage paths shall be provided to guide floodwaters around and away 
from proposed structures. 

106-262 Subdivision plats. Where any portion of proposed subdivisions, including 
manufactured home parks and subdivisions, lies within a flood hazard area, the following shall 
be required: 

(1) Delineation of flood hazard areas, floodway boundaries and flood zones, and design 
flood elevations, as appropriate, shall be shown on preliminary plats and final plats; 

(2) Where the subdivision has more than 50 lots or is larger than 5 acres and base flood 
elevations are not included on the FIRM, the base flood elevations determined in 
accordance with Section 1 06-112(1) ~of this ordinance; and 

(3) Compliance with the site improvement and utilities requirements of Article 3, Division 3 
of this ordinance. 

Sees. 106-263-106-290. - Reserved. 

DIVISION 3 SITE IMPROVEMENTS, UTILITIES AND LIMITATIONS 

106-291 Minimum requirements. All proposed new development shall be reviewed to 
determine that: 

19 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

30 



(1) Such proposals are consistent with the need to minimize flood damage and will be 
reasonably safe from flooding; 

(2) All public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electric, communications, and water 
systems are located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage; and 

(3) Adequate drainage is provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards; in Zones AH 
and AO, adequate drainage paths shall be provided to guide floodwaters around and 
away from proposed structures. 

106-292 Sanitary sewage facilities. All new and replacement sanitary sewage facilities, private 
sewage treatment plants (including all pumping stations and collector systems), and on-site 
waste disposal systems shall be designed in accordance with the standards for onsite sewage 
treatment and disposal systems in Chapter 64E-6, FAC. and ASCE 24 Chapter 7 to minimize 
or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the facilities and discharge from the facilities into flood 
waters, and impairment of the facilities and systems. 

106-293 Water supply facilities. All new and replacement water supply facilities shall be 
designed in accordance with the water well construction standards in Chapter 62-532.500, 
FAG. and ASCE 24 Chapter 7 to minimize or eliminate infiltration offloodwaters into the 
systems. 

106-294 Limitations on sites in regulatory floodways. No development, including but not 
limited to site improvements, and land disturbing activity involving fill or regrading, shall be 
authorized in the regulatory floodway unless the floodway encroachment analysis required in 
Section 1 06-113(1) of this ordinance demonstrates that the proposed development or land 
disturbing activity will not result in any increase in the base flood elevation. 

106-295 Limitations on placement of fill. Subject to the limitations of this ordinance, fill shall 
be designed to be stable under conditions of flooding including rapid rise and rapid drawdown of 
floodwaters, prolonged inundation, and protection against flood-related erosion and scour. In 
addition to these requirements, if intended to support buildings and structures (Zone A only), fill 
shall comply with the requirements of the Florida Building Code 

Sees. 106-296-106-310.- Reserved. 

DIVISION 4 MANUFACTURED HOMES 

106-311 General. All manufactured homes installed in flood hazard areas shall be installed by 
an installer that is licensed pursuant to section 320.8249, F.S., and shall comply with the 
requirements of Chapter 15C-1, FAC. and the requirements of this ordinance. If located 
seaward of the coastal construction control line, all manufactured homes shall comply with the 
more restrictive of the applicable requirements. 

106-312 Foundations. All new manufactured homes and replacement manufactured homes 
installed in flood hazard areas shall be installed on permanent, reinforced foundations that are 
designed in accordance with the foundation requirements of the Florida Building Code 
Residential Section R322.2 and this ordinance. Foundations for manufactured homes subject to 
Section 1 06-314(2) of this ordinance are permitted to be reinforced piers or other foundation 
elements of at least equivalent strength. 

20 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

31 



106-313 Anchoring. All new manufactured homes and replacement manufactured homes shall 
be installed using methods and practices which minimize flood damage and shall be securely 
anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse or lateral 
movement Methods of anchoring include, but are not limited to, use of over-the-top or frame 
ties to ground anchors. This anchoring requirement is in addition to applicable state and local 
anchoring requirements for wind resistance. 

106-314 Elevation. Manufactured homes that are placed, replaced, or substantially improved 
shall comply with Section 106-314(1) or (2) or of this ordinance, as applicable. 

(1) General elevation requirement. Unless subject to the requirements of subsection (2) of this 
section, all manufactured homes that are placed, replaced, or substantially improved on sites 
located: (a) outside of a manufactured home park or subdivision: (b) in a new manufactured 
home park or subdivision; (c) in an expansion to an existing manufactured home park or 
subdivision; or (d) in an existing manufactured home park or subdivision upon which a 
manufactured home has incurred "substantial damage" as the result of a flood, shall be elevated 
such that the bottom of the frame is at or above the elevation required, as applicable to the flood 
hazard area, in the Florida Building Code, Residential Section R322.2 (Zone A). 

(2) Elevation requirement for certain existing manufactured home parks and subdivisions. 
Manufactured homes that are not subject to subsection (1) of this section, including 
manufactured homes that are placed, replaced, or substantially improved on sites located in an 
existing manufactured home park or subdivision, unless on a site where substantial damage as 
result of flooding has occurred, shall be elevated such that either the: 

a. Bottom of the frame of the manufactured home is at or above the elevation required in 
the Florida Building Code, Residential Section R322.2 (Zone A); or 

b. Bottom of the frame is supported by reinforced piers or other foundation elements of at 
least equivalent strength that are not less than 36 inches in height above grade. 

106·315 Enclosures. Milly enclosed areas below elevated manufactured homes shall comply 
with the requirements of the Florida Building Code, Residential Section R3222, for such 
enclosed areas. 

106·316 Utility equipment. Utility equipment that serves manufactured homes, including 
electric, heating, ventilation, plumbing, and air conditioning equipment and other service 
facilities, shall comply with the requirements of the Florida Building Code, Residential Section 
R322. 

Sees. 106-317-106-330.- Reserved. 

DIVISION 5 RECREATIONAL VEHICLES AND PARK TRAILERS 

106-331 Temporary placement. Recreational vehicles and park trailers placed temporarily in 
flood hazard areas shall: 

(1) Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days; or 

(2) Be fully licensed and ready for highway use, which means the recreational vehicle or 
park model is on wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick
disconnect type utilities and security devices, and has no permanent attachments such 
as additions, rooms, stairs, decks and porches. 

21 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

32 



106-332 Permanent placement. Recreational vehicles and park trailers that do not meet the 
limitations in Section 106-331 of this ordinance for temporary placement shall meet the 
requirements of Article Ill, Division 4 of this ordinance for manufactured homes. 

Sees. 106-333-106-350.- Reserved. 

DIVISION 6 TANKS 

106-351 Underground tanks. Underground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be anchored to 
prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic 
loads during conditions of the design flood, including the effects of buoyancy assuming the tank 
is empty. 

106-352 Above-ground tanks, not elevated. Above-ground tanks that do not meet the 
elevation requirements of Section 106-353 of this ordinance shall be permitted in flood hazard 
areas provided the tanks are anchored or otherwise designed and constructed to prevent 
flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads during 
conditions of the design flood, including the effects of buoyancy assuming the tank is empty and 
the effects of flood-borne debris. 

106-353 Above-ground tanks, elevated. Above-ground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be 
attached to and elevated to or above the design flood elevation on a supporting structure that is 
designed to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement during conditions of the design flood. 
Tank-supporting structures shall meet the foundation requirements of the applicable flood 
hazard area. 

106-354 Tank inlets and vents. Tank inlets, fill openings, outlets and vents shall be: 

(1) At or above the design flood elevation or fitted with covers designed to prevent the inflow 
of floodwater or outflow of the contents of the tanks during conditions of the design flood; 
and 

(2) Anchored to prevent lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic 
loads, including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions of the design flood. 

Sees. 106-355-106-370.- Reserved. 

DIVISION 7 OTHER DEVELOPMENT 

106-371 General requirements for other development. All development, including man-made 
changes to improved or unimproved real estate for which specific provisions are not specified in 
this ordinance or the Florida Building Code, shall: 

(1) Be located and constructed to minimize flood damage; 

(2) Meet the limitations of Section 106-294 of this ordinance if located in a regulated 
floodway; 

(3) Be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrostatic 
loads, including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions of the design flood; 

(4) Be constructed of flood damage-resistant materials; and 

(5) Have mechanical, plumbing, and electrical systems above the design flood elevation or 

22 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

33 



meet the requirements of ASCE 24, except that minimum electric service required to 
address life safety and electric code requirements is permitted below the design flood 
elevation provided it conforms to the provisions of the electrical part of building code for 
wet locations. 

106-372 Fences in regulated floodways. Fences in regulated floodways that have the 
potential to block the passage of floodwaters, such as stockade fences and wire mesh fences, 
shall meet the limitations of Section 106-294 of this ordinance. 

106-373 Retaining walls, sidewalks and driveways in regulated floodways. Retaining walls 
and sidewalks and driveways that involve the placement of fill in regulated floodways shall meet 
the limitations of Section 106-294 of this ordinance. 

106-374 Roads and watercourse crossings in regulated floodways. Roads and 
watercourse crossings, including roads, bridges, culverts, low-water crossings and similar 
means for vehicles or pedestrians to travel from one side of a watercourse to the other side, that 
encroach into regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Section 106-294 of this 
ordinance. Alteration of a watercourse that is part of a road or watercourse crossing shall meet 
the requirements of Section 1 06-113(3) of this ordinance. 

Sees. 106-375-106-400. ·Reserved. 

SECTION 3. FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT. 
In terms of design, plan application review, construction and inspection of buildings and 
structures, the cost impact as an overall average is negligible in regard to the local technical 
amendments because all development has been subject to the requirements of the local 
floodplain management ordinance adopted for participation in the National Flood Insurance 
Program. In terms of lower potential for flood damage, there will be continued savings and 
benefits to consumers. 

SECTION 4. APPLICABILITY. 
For the purposes of jurisdictional applicability, this ordinance shall apply in the City of 
Edgewood. This ordinance shall apply to all applications for development, including building 
permit applications and subdivision proposals, submitted on or after the effective date of this 
ordinance. 

SECTION 5. REPEALER. 
Any and all ordinances and regulations in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of 
any conflict. This ordinance specifically repeals and replaces Chapter 106 of the City of 
Edgewood Code of Ordinances. 

SECTION 6. INCLUSION INTO THE CODE OF ORDINANCES. 
It is the intent of the City Council of the City of Edgewood that the provisions of this ordinance 
shall become and be made a part of the City of Edgewood Code of Ordinances, and that the 
sections of this ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the word "ordinance" may be 
changed to "section," "article," "regulation," or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to 
accomplish such intentions. 

SECTION 7. SEVERABILITY. 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for any reason, 
declared by the courts to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 

23 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

34 



of the ordinance as a whole, or any part thereof, other than the part so declared 

SECTION 8. EFFECTIVE DATE. 
This ordinance shall take effect on _________ _ 

PASSED on first reading December 20, 2018. 
PASSED and ADOPTED in regular session, with a quorum present and voting, by the City 
Council of the City of Edgewood, upon second and final reading this ______ _ 

John Dowless, Council President 

ATTEST 

Bea L. Meeks 
City Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

D. Andrew Smith, Ill 
City Attorney 

24 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

35 



1 

2 

3 
4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 
14 

15 
16 

17 

18 
19 
_Q 

21 
22 

23 
24 

25 
26 

27 

28 
29 
30 

31 

32 

33 
34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

ORDINANCE 2018-16 

AN ORDil'IANCE OF TI-IE CITY COU"iCIL OF THE CITY 
OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE 2018/2019 
FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
ANNUAL UPDATE; PROYIDil'IG FOR LEGISLATIVE 
Fll'IDINGS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR EXCLUSION FR0:\1 CODIFICATION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Section 163 .3177(3 )(a), Florida Statutes, requires that local government 
comprehensive plans contain a capital improvements element designed to consider the need for 
and the location of public facilities; and 

WHEREAS, Section 163.3177(3)(b), Florida Statutes, requires that local governments 
revievy the capital improvements element on an annual basis, and provides that modifications to 
update the five year capital improvements schedule may be accomplished by ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, "capital improvement" generally means physical assets constructed or 
purchased to provide, improve, or replace a public facility, typically large scale, high in cost, and 
may require multi-year financing; and 

WHEREAS, Section 163.3177(3)(a)4, Florida Statutes, requires that projects necessary to 
achieve and maintain adopted levels of service for the five-year planning period be included in the 
capital improvement schedule. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF 
EDGEWOOD AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: RECITALS/INTENT. The recitals set fonh above are tme and correct and 
constitute legislative findings of the City Council. 

SECTION 2: AMENDMENT TO THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT SCHEDULE. The 
Capital Improvement Program Annual Update is hereby adopted as set forth in Exhibit "A," 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

SECTION 3: EXCLUSION FROM CITY CODE/CODIFICATION. It is the intent of the 
City of Edgewood City Council that the provisions of this Ordinance shall not be codified into the 
City of Edgewood Code of Ordinances. 

SECTION 4: EFFECTIVE DATE. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be 
immediately upon adoption. 

SECTION 5: CONFLICTS. This ordinance shall supersede any ordinances in conflict 
herewith to the extent that such conflict exists. 

SECTION 6: SEVERABILITY. If any part of this ordinance is found to be invalid, 
preempted, or otherwise superseded, the remainder shall nevertheless be given full force and effect 
to the extent permitted by the se\'erance of such invalid, preempted, or superseded part. 

1 
ORDINANCE 2018-16 

36 



39 PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS 20th DAY OF December, 2018. 

,Q 

41 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS ____ DAY OF ___ , 2019. 

42 

43 

44 

45 

46 
47 

CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA 

CITY COUNCIL 

48 John Dowless, Cmmcil President 
49 ATTEST: 
50 
51 
52 Bea Meeks, City Clerk 

2 
ORDINANCE 2018-16 

37 



Debra S. Babb-Nutcher, Esquire 
Florida Bar Number 996580 

Board Certified in City, County, & Local Government La1N since 2004 
AV Rated by Martindale-Hubbell 
Florida Bar Member since 1994; Washington State Bar Member 1990 · 2012 

LEGAL WORK EXPERIENCE 

Partner 
Garganese, Weiss, D'Agresta & Salzman, P.A. 
Orlando, Florida 

July 2001 to present 

Code Enforcement Expenence Over 20 years of experience representing code enforcement boards 
in Florida, as well as representing code enforcement staff before Special Magistrates. Currently 
serves as counsel to the City of Cocoa Code Enforcement Board and City of Titusville Code 
Enforcement Board. Currently serves as code enforcement staff attorney for the City of Orange City 
before the Special Magistrate. Served as code board attorney for City of Casselberry, City of 
Gainesville, City of Lake Mary, and City of Palm Coast. Served as back-up/part-time code board 
attorney for City of Cape Canaveral, City of Cocoa Beach, and City of \Ninter Springs. Provide 
training sessions for code board members and code enforcementstaff. Draft board orders, sample 
board motions. Provide advice and handle code enforcement aj)peals. Draft ordinances regarding 
lien reduction process. Handled many cases challenging local go,;ernm ent codes. Handled nuisance 
abatement actions on behalf of local governments. Over 16 years of experience handling code 
enforcement lien foreclosures on behalf of multiple cities. Excellent \Norking knowledge of Chapter 
162, Florida Statutes and related case law. 

Litigation on behalf of local government and private clients. H and:e a 1 l aspects of complex and sim pie 
litigation from inception of case, drafting pleadings, discovery, motions; taking depositions; legal 
research; arguing pre-trial motions; attending mediation, trial; drafting post-trial motions; appellate 
work. 

Local government attorney providing complete tra nsactiona I legal services, such as providing written 
and oral legal opinions; drafting contracts, policies, ordinances, and agenda items; interpreting codes 
and ordinances and their proper application in particular circumstances; coordinating with other 
government entities, training staff, representing boards and councils, include code enforcement 
boards, planning and zoning boards, boards of adjustment, and city councils; attending public 
hearings. Knowledge of unique issues for local governments, including land use, planning, open 
meetings (Sunshine), public records laws, ethics, sovereign immunity, civil rights, public procurement, 
public employment, collective bargaining, among many others. 

Extensive areas of practice including land use, permitting and de vela pm ent rights, rea\ property law, 
general property rights, eminent dam a in, inverse condemnation/takings, premises liability, insu ranee 
defense, personal injury and property loss, employment and personnel matters, administrative law, 
constitutional challenges, ordinance challenges, civil rights, due piocess, §1983, intergovernmental 
coordination, transfer of powers, utilities, construction, bid challenges, procurement, bonds, code 
enforcement, red light cameras, collections, evictions, foreclosures, lien enforcement, civil forfeitures, 
civil citations, Sunshine and Public Records Law, Ethics lav:s for public officials, unsafe 
buildings/nuisances, mold exposure liability, business/contract matters, contract drafting, review and 
interpretation, and litigation of contract disputes, HOA/condo association matters, and property 
management. 

Hearing Officer, Red Light Camera Violations, City of Edge'ivood. 

-1-

38 



Co-Adjunct Professor, Land Use 
Barry University School of Lmv 
Orlando, Florida 

Adjunct Professor, Legal Research and Writing II 
Barry University School of Law 
Orlando, Florida 

Assistant City Attorney 
City of Gainesvllle, Florida 

SJmmer 2014; Summer 2015 

Spring, 2010 

October 1999to July 12, 2001 

General litigation: land use, premises liability, employment, personal injury, eminent domain, code 
enforcement, foreclosures, collections, appeals. 

Counsel to the following boards and committees: Code Enforcement Board, Board of Adjustment, 
Fire Safety Board of Adjustment, Tree Board of Appeals, and Recreation and Cultural Affairs 
Committee 

Transaction a I work included; training seminars; review of policies a11d procedures and recommending 
improvements; drafting legal research memoranda, resolutions, ordinances, contracts; real estate 
acquisitions and conveyances; procurement; construction. 

Assistant General Counsel- Senior Attorney February 1993 to October 1999 
Florida Department of Transportation, Districts II and VII 

Eminent domain litigation, legal research and preparation of numerous legal opinions, legal advice and 
assistance to various departments on a variety of legal issues. 

Associate Attorney for litigation firms in Seattle, Washington 1990-1992 

EDUCATION 

Pepperdine University School of Law, Malibu, California, 1989 

Moot Court Executive Board 
Chairperson, Trial Advocacy Tournament 
Vi11cent S. Dalsimer Moot Court Competition 
-first place team, first place brief 

Drake University, Des Moines, Iowa, 1986 

BFA Speech Communication, English minor 

-2-

Inter-school Moot Court Team 
National Moot Court Com petition -third place 
Teaching Assistant Leg a\ Research and Writing 
Numerous academic scholarships 

39 



CATHERINE THERESA HOLLIS, ESQUIRE 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

Garganese, Weiss, D'Agresta & Salzman, P.A.- Orlando. Florida 

Associate Attorney- Local Government & Business/Corporate Law 

(407) 425-9566 OFFICE 
KHOLUS@ORLANDOLA'N.NET 

2018-present 

Assist City Attorney and Assistant City Attorney in general representation of se'Jeral municipa:ities and their departments in 
a multitude of matters, including: 

Draft, review, and negotiation of agreements and contracts; 
Draft resolutions, ordinances, and agenda items; and 

Research and respond to local government officials and staff as needed pertaining to an assortment of legal issues 
and queries. 

Representation of small and closely-held for-profit and non-profit business entities in various aspects of corporate law, 
including: 

Form and register business entities; structure corporate governance; and prepare necessary documents for mergers 
and acquisitions; 

Ensure ongoing compliance -vvith governmental entities, including Department of State and relevant governing industry 
agencies; and 

Prepare, review, and negotiate employment agreements, independent contractor agreements, purchase and sale 
documents, and other contracts. 

The Kendrick Law Group- Maitland, Florida 

Attorney/Partner- Bus;ness!Corporate Law 

2016-2018 

Representation of small and closely-held for-profit and non-profit business entities in various aspects of corporate law. 

Whitehouse & Cooper, PLLC - Orlando, Florida 2014-2016 

Associate- Business& Technology Law 
Representation of small business owners, many in the technology industry, in various aspects of corporate law, including: 

Incorporation of business entities; structuring corporate governance; and preparafon of necessary documents for 
mergers and acquisitions; 

Preparation of master service agreements, terms of service, privacy policies, and service level agreements; and 

Preparation, review, and negotiation of employment agreements, independent contractor agreements, purchase and 
sale documents and other contracts. 

The Health Law Firm- Altamonte Springs, Florida 

Associate- Health Care Law 
Represented health care professionals in ali aspects, includ;1ng: 

2013-2014 

Administrative litigation, including licensure defense, defense of claims for federal civil money penalties, and bringing 
agency rule challenge actions; 

Preparation, review, and negotiation of contracts for employment, medical director agreements, practice asset sale and 
purchase agreements, independent contractor agreements, and physician recruiting agreements; 

Appearances before state boards in license application and disciplinary matters; and 

Representation of applicants before national examination boards regarding allegations of irregular behavior. 

Kest Law, LLC- Orlando, Florida 

Of-Counsel- Civil Litigation 

Masten, Peterson & Denbo, LLC- Orlando, Flon"da 

Of Counsel-Insurance Defense Litigation 

Associate -Insurance Defense Litigation 

Dean, Mead, Egerton, Bloodworth, Capouano & Bozarth, P.A. -Orlando, Florida 

Paralegal- Corporate Law 

Various Office Services and Administrative Assistant Positions 

Admitted; Florida Bar 

2012-2013 

2011-2013 
2012-2013 

2011-2012 

1993-1998; 2003-2011 
2003-2011 

1993-1998 

September 2011 

40 



CATHERINE THERESA HOLLIS, ESQUIRE 

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS 

Member, Orange County Bar Association 
Executive Council 
The Briefs Magazine 

Editor 
Associate Editor 

Mentoring Program, Vice Chair 
Professionalism Committee 

Chair 
Vice Chair 
Awards Subcommittee Chair 

Business La\N Committee 
Board Member 

Associate Member, The George C. Young First Central Florida American Inn of Court 

EDUCATION 

PAGE 2 

2011-present 
June 2018-May 2020 

2017-present 
June 2018-present 

2017-2018 
2017 -present 
2012-present 

2016-2017 
2015-2016 

2014-present 
2012-present 

2017-2018 

2012-2017 

Juris Doctorate 
Stetson University College of Lav;, Gulfport, FL 
May 2011, cum laude 

Bachelor of Science- Legaf Studies 
University of Central Florida, Orlando, FL 
May2008 

Member, Phi Delta Phi, Invitation-only Honors Fraternity 
Member, Honors Program 

PUBLICATIONS & AWARDS 

Publication: "He's a Thinker: Legal Reasoning and 'Thinking Like a Lawyer'", La\1V, Justice, and Miscommunications: 
Essays in Applied Legal Philosophy, Tim Kaye, editor (2011 ). 

Award: Outstanding Committee Chair, Orange County Bar Association Professionalism Committee, 2017 

Confidentiality Js Requested and Appreciated 

41 



Bea Meeks 

-cnt: 
To: 

Sandy Riffle 

Monday, January 7, 2019 9:25AM 
Bea M eeks 

Subject: Regina Dunay resignation 

From: Ray Bagshaw 

Sent: Wednesday, December 26, 2018 1:04PM 

To: Sandy Riffle <s riffle@edgewood-fl.gov> 

Subject: Fwd: P&Z 

FYI 

Sent from my iPhone 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Regina Dunay <rcdunay@,Q.mail.com> 
Date: December 26, 2018 at 11:54:51 AM EST 
To: Ray Bagshaw <rbagshaw@edgewood-fl.gov> 
Subject: P&Z 

Ray, 

My 3 year term is up at the end of this year and I do not wish to continue serving the Board in 
2019. It has been a great learning experience and I have appreciated the opp011unity, but it is 
time for me to concentrate on other priorities. 

Thank you, 
Regina Dunay 

42 



Planuing and Zouing Board Members sen ·e 3-yea r s taggered terms (Per City Charter) 
The p lanning and zoning board shall consist of five members appointed by the mayor subject to 

confirmation by the city council from among the residents of the city. Members of the planning and 
zoning board shall be appointed to serve for three years in staggered sequences. 

l\1 Ei\IBERS 
1sT DATE OF 

TERJ\1 EX PIRES 
APPOLNTMENT 

WADE FISCHER Appointed 2-18-20 14 APPOrNTEDTO 12/3112015 

BRIAi'l LEAHY Sworn-in 3/3/2014 (Brian Leahy requested to not be 
reappointed) 

Complete term of Brian Leahy - 20 15 

BEN PIERCE Appointed 411 9/2016 Complete term of\\'ade Fischer-
Sworn in 5/9/2016 Appointed to 12/31/20 18 

Resigned 11/28/20 17 
DAVID GRAGG Appointed 1112 1 2017 Complete term ofBm Pi.:rce 

S 1~orn in 12/ 11/2017 Appointed to 12/31/2020 

tv1AR.IO RAYBUR~ Sworn-in 5/ 12 12/31112 
Reappointed 2- 18-20 14 

REAPPOrNTED TO 
12/31/2017 

Re-appointed 1-16-20 18 Re-appointed to 12'31/2020 
$\1 orn in 2/12/2018 

9/ 18/07 12/31/ 12 
REGrNA DUNAY 

REAPPOrNTED TO 
Reappointed 4/ 19/2016 12/31/2015 

Reappointed to 12/3 1120 18 

12/31/ 12 
JON VAN VORHIS Appointed to complete term of 

Frank Aguilar in July 20 12 REAPPOrNTED TO 
meeting 12/31/2015 
RESIGNED 8/2014 

CHRJS RADER Appointed 8/19/20 14 Complete term of Jon Van Vorhis-
2015 

Reappointed 4/19/2016 IR.eagp_ointed to 12/3 1/20 18 
9118/07 12/3111 2 

SUSAN LOMAS Reappointed 2-1 8-2014 RE-APPOrNTED TO 
12/31/2017 
Resigned August 17, 20 16 

KEITH FARMER Sworn in 12/12/2016 
Resigned 4/20 17 APPOrNTED to complete Lomas 

term 12/31/20 17 
WADE FI SCHER Appointment 4/18/2017 

Sworn in 5/8/2017 APPOINTED to complete Farmer's 
term 12/31/2019 

AILEEN TRIVEDI Appointment 4/18/2017 APPOINTED to complete Fischer' s 
Sworn in 2/12/2018 tenn 12/31/2020 

43 



2019 
VOTE PROCESSING EQUIPMENT 

USE AGREEMENT AND 
ELECTIONS SERVICES CONTRACT 

FOR MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS 

This Vote Processing Equipment Use Agreement and Elections SeNices Contract 
(hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement") is hereby entered into by and between the 
Orange County Supervisor of Elections Office, (hereinafter referred to as "SOE") 
and the City of Edgewood, Orange County, Florida, (hereinafter referred to as 
"MUNICIPALITY"). 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 101.34, Florida Statutes, SOE is the legal 
custodian of certified vote processing equipment owned by Orange County, Florida and 
is hereby charged with the responsibility for custody and maintenance of said 
equipment; and, 

WHEREAS, MUNICIPALITY desires, or is otherwise statutorily obligated, to 
conduct an election that requires the use of vote processing equipment to count ballots; 
and, 

WHEREAS, All vote processing equipment requires specially trained and 
knowledgeable individuals to program, operate and maintain said equipment; and, 

WHEREAS, The Orange County Board of County Commissioners has authorized . 
SOE to provide any necessary terms and conditions for the use of such voting 
equipment; and, 

WHEREAS, SOE can provide the necessary personnel to program, operate and 
maintain said equipment; and, 

WHEREAS, MUNCIPALITY hereby acknowledges full responsibility for any and 
all applicable requirements under the Florida Election Code and any provisions of the 
city charter or municipal ordinances which may not be addressed or included in th is 
agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual 
promises, terms and conditions stated herein SOE and MUNICIPALITY agree as 
follows: 

SECTION 1. 

SECTION 2. 

Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated 
herein. 

Agreement. SOE shall provide to MUNICIPALITY such necessary vote 
processing equipment and services according to the terms and 
conditions stated in this Agreement, for the purposes of conducting a 
General Election to be held on Tuesday, March 12, 2019, along with 
the necessary equipment and services to facilitate any early voting 
sites and polling places as may be necessary and agreed upon by the 
parties. 

44 



2019 ELECTIONS AGREEMENT Page 2 of 9 
SECTION 3. Operation and Programming Services. 

SECTION 4. 

DS200 For each election, MUNICIPALITY shall pay SOE One Hundred 
Fifty Dollars ($150.00) for the program and maintenance of any DS200 
tabulator and Seventy-five Dollars ($75.00) for each additional 
tabulator that is identically programmed. For Early Voting, 
MUNICIPALITY shall pay SOE Seventy-five Dollars ($75.00) for the 
program, maintenance and operation of each DS200 tabulator that is 
identically programmed and operated as the DS200 tabulators that are 
programmed for Election Day. 

M650 For each election, MUNICIPALITY shall pay SOE Two Hundred 
Dollars ($200.00) fo r the program, maintenance and operation of any 
M650 high-speed ballot counting equipment. Such fee shall include up 
to four (4) hours of processing time, election set-up and coordination, 
programming of high-speed ballot counting equipment and processing 
of envelopes through the automatic envelope openers. For each 
additional hour needed to provide the services described in th is 
paragraph, MUNICIPALITY shall pay SOE Fifty Dollars ($50.00) per 
hour. 

Epoll Books For each election, MUNICIPALITY shall pay SOE Seventy 
-five Dollars ($75.00) for data base set-up and maintenance of each 
precinct tablet set-up, which includes 2 Epoll Books and 1 Help Desk 
tablet per precinct. Additional check in tablets will be charged at 
Seventy-five Dollars ($75.00) each. 

Repairs For any election, all maintenance, repairs or other 
troubleshooting services for vote processing equipment, including any 
processors or tablets, will be performed exclusively by SOE and such 
services are included in all stated charges. However, SOE does 
reserve the right to seek reimbursement from MUNICIPALITY for any 
repairs or maintenance caused by any negligent or unauthorized acts 
by any employee or representative of MUNICIPALITY. 

Additional Early Voting Services for Off-Site Locations For Non-Ballot
on-Demand Method 

Tablets For each early voting site other than the Office of the SOE, 
MUNICIPALITY shall pay SOE Three Hundred and Seventy-Five 
Dollars ($375.00) for the program and operation of two check-in 
stations. Such service fee includes the downloading or uploading of 
any necessary data. These charges are per election. 

Printers For each early voting site other than the Office of the SOE, 
MUNICIPALITY shal l pay SOE One Hundred and Seventy-Five Dollars 
($175.00) for the programming, configu ration and set-up of any 
connected printer. These charges are per election. 
Delivery For each early voting site other than the Office of the SOE, 

Revised 1213/20 18 

45 



2019 ELECTIONS AGREEMENT Page 3 of 9 

SECTION 5. 

MUNICIPALITY shall pay SOE Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00) for the 
delivery, set-up and/or pick-up of any early voting equipment. These 
charges are per election. 

Other Election Charges. 

Supplies For each election, MUNICIPALITY shall pay SOE for 
consumable precinct suppl ies at a rate of One Hundred Fifty Dollars 
($150.00) for each precinct and each Early Voting site . SOE will 
arrange pick up of precinct supplies no later than the day after the 
election. MUNICIPALITY shall also identify and provide a secu re place 
for precinct clerk(s) to return supplies and voted and unvoted ballots on 
election night. 

PAPER PUPA For each election, MUNICIPALITY shall pay SOE the 
actual costs incurred to produce, print and bind Poll Lists/Precinct 
Registers ("PUPA"), including any paper or delivery costs. SOE shall 
have sole discretion in selecting a third party vendor to perform the 
requisite printing and binding services. 

Communication For each election, MUNICIPALITY shall pay SOE for 
any actual costs incurred by SOE from a third party 
telecommunications provider for the set-up, activation, use and 
deactivation of any telephone or wireless inte rnet lines which in the 
SOE's sole discretion are necessitated at any voting site. 
MUNICIPALITY shall also pay SOE for the cost incurred· for paying Poll 
Workers for use of personal cell phones as needed for Election Day 
communication. Selection of the third party telecommunications 
providers shall be at the preference of SOE. 

Indexes For any Street Indexes ordered or required, MUNICIPALITY 
shall pay SOE Nine Dollars ($9.00) as a set·up services fee plus 
Twenty-five Cents ($.25) for each printed page. 

Vote by Mail ballots For each election, MUNICIPALITY shall pay SOE 
One Dollar with Seventy-five Cents ($1.75) for each Vote by Mail ballot 
request processed plus actual postage costs. MUNICIPALITY shall 
also pay SOE Ten Cents ($.1 0) for each Vote by Mail ballot signature 
verified. 
MUNICIPALITY may choose to pay return postage for Vote by Mail 
ballots at the actual cost incurred. 

Early Voting MUNICIPALITY shall reimburse SOE for any overtime 
hours by SOE staff due to weekend hours for Early Voting locations 
including any hours accrued by SOE staff at the Offices of SOE. SOE 
may elect to evenly apportion the costs for early voting overtime hours 
among various municipalities, if appropriate, but in no event shall SOE 
be obligated to apportion such costs. SOE shall insure that 
experienced SOE personnel staff each Early Voting site, in accordance 
with Florida law. 

Revised 12/3/2018 

46 



2019 ELECTIONS AGREEMENT Page 4 of 9 

SECTION 6. 

SECTION 7. 

SECTION 8. 

SECTION 9. 

Notices For each election, MUNICIPALITY shall pay SOE Twenty-five 
Cents ($.25) for each Notice of Election that is mailed to each eligible 
voter plus actual postage costs. 

Fee Schedule For each e lection, MUNICIPALITY shall pay SOE for any 
other goods or seNices not specifically provided for in this Agreement 
but that may be described or listed in the latest Municipal Fee Schedule 
as distributed to MUNICIPALITY. MUNICIPALITY agrees that the 
Municipal Fee Schedule and the prices contained therein are subject to 
change. 

Other For each election and upon proper notice to MUNICIPALITY, 
MUNICIPALITY shall pay SOE for any other e lection seNices not 
contemplated herein which may be needed to conduct an orderly 
election. 

Term. For each election, the terms of this Agreement begins with ballot 
layout and concludes when ballots have been processed, election 
results have been certified, all vote processing equipment has been 
returned to the SOE's warehouse and an audit, if applicable, has been 
completed. In the event of an election contest or challenge, SOE agrees 
to cooperate in providing any public records which the SOE maintains or 
otherwise controls. 

Applicable Requirements of Florida's Election Code. MUNICIPALITY 
shall properly call the election in accordance w ith any Florida Statutes, 
applicable charter provisions or city ordinances. MUNICIPALITY agrees 
that the Municipal Clerk is responsible for the conduct of the city's 
elections and for insuring compliance with all applicable Florida Statutes, 
including the Florida Election Code and any municipal charter provisions 
and ordinances. Any obligations or duties not set forth in this Agreement 
shall be the sole responsibility of MUNICIPALITY. 

Notice and Advertisement of Elections. MUNICIPALITY shall prepare 
and arrange for publication of all legal advertising required by state and 
federal statutes, city charter & city ordinances. MUNICIPALITY agrees 
that all advertisements of elections conducted in Orange County shall be 
published in both English and Spanish and that MUNICIPALITY shall be 
responsible for the accurate and complete translation of any such 
notices. SOE shall, if available, provide samples of required advertising 
upon request. 

Qualifying of Candidates. MUNICIPALITY may provide qualifying 
packets to candidates. MUNCIPALITY shall accept and process all 
qualifying papers and fees. For audio ballots, MUNCIPALITY shall 
collect pronunciation guides from candidates at the time of qualifying and 
shall submit them to SOE at the close of qualifying. 

Revised 12/3/2018 

47 



2019 ELECTIONS AGREEMENT Page 5 of 9 

If petitions are part of qualifying process, MUNICIPALITY shall pay to 
SOE ten (1 0) cents per name checked to verify any signatures on 
qualifying petitions. SOE agrees to verify any signatures for any 
qualifying petitions submitted by MUNICIPALITY. 

In no event shall SOE issue any recommendations or make any legal 
determinations as to the qualifications or eligibility of any candidate for 
municipal office. 

SECTION 10. Printing of Ballots and Ballot Services. MUNICIPALITY shall place an 
order for a sufficient quantity of Election Day ballots with a third party 
printer as selected exclusively by SOE. MUNICIPALITY shall provide 
prompt payment to the third party printer for the cost of any printed 
ballots or election materials. MUNICIPALITY shall also pay SOE a per 
ballot fee for each Vote by Mail and Early Voting ballot printed. 

MUNICIPALITY shall furnish, immediately upon the conclusion of the 
qualifying period, all ballot information in English and Spanish including 
the name the name of the candidates as they are to appear on the ballot; 
the name of the Municipality; the name of the election; the title of office 
and/or referendum title; explanation; and questions. 

SOE agrees to provide the layout of the ballot(s) based on the 
information furnished by MUNICIPALITY and deliver ballot layout to the 
approved printer. MUNICIPALITY will place ballot order with printer. 
Both SOE and MUNICIPALITY must sign off on ballot proof(s). 

Once test ballots are received from the printer, SOE will test all vote 
processing equipment in accordance with the standards established by 
the Florida Division of Elections and any applicable Florida Statutes. 
Upon receipt of the printed ballots from the printer SOE shall receive, 
securely store and account for all ballots until disbursed to Early Voting 
locations or to poll clerks. SOE shall also control and limit all access to 
unvoted ballots while in the possession of SOE. 

Revised 12/3/201 8 

48 



2019 ELECTIONS AGREEMENT Page 6 of 9 
SECTION 11. Poll Workers. SOE will select poll workers from a group of 

experienced poll workers. SOE will assign back-up poll workers to 
be available on Election morning. SOE will train all poll workers in 
accordance with the Florida Election Code and other guidelines, 
procedures or regulations as followed or adopted for the conduct of 
elections in Orange County. Clerk for MUNCIPALITY, or a 
representative, shall be in attendance for poll worker training 
sessions, at minimum the Poll Clerk training. SOE shall distribute 
all necessary supplies and ballots at poll worker training sessions. 
MUNICIPALITY shall pay poll workers directly fo r their services at 
pay rates previously established by SOE. 

SOE will select and train early voting staff. SOE will pay early voting 
staff directly for their services. MUNICIPALITY will be billed for any 
overtime charges incurred due to Early Voting. 

SECTION 12. Selection of Polling Places and Early Voting Sites. SOE shall approve 
any Polling Place(s) and Early Voting site(s) intended for use of as a 
voting location. Each location shall meet necessary ADA requirements. 
MUNICIPALITY shall conduct an onsite inspection of all polling places, 
including any early voting locations used other than the Office of SOE, 
and confirm that such locations are accessible to disabled and elderly 
voters. SOE reserves the right to select a suitable alternative if any 
proposed site fails to meet with SOE approval. MUNICIPALITY shall 
provide a list of proposed polling places and early voting sites no later 
than thirty-five (35) days prior to the date of the election. MUNICIPALITY 
shall pay any rental fees or usage fees directly to the polling place. 

MUNICIPALITY shall notify SOE in writing if any tables or chairs wi ll be 
required. Note that each polling place must, as determined by SOE, 
provide a minimum number of tables and chairs. MUNICIPALITY shall 
pay any rental fees incurred by SOE for tables and chairs. 

SECTION 13. Sample Ballots. SOE shall layout, check and deliver sample ballot 
layout to a third party vendor for distribution to registered voters. 
MUNICIPALITY shall review the sample ballots and confirm the 
accuracy of the election date, office, candidate names, polling place 
and all other information contained therein. SOE shall coordinate the 
mail ing of the sample ballots to all registered voters in the municipality 
prior to the election including accurate polling place information . 
MUNICIPALITY shall reimburse SOE for all costs incurred in producing 
and mailing sample ballots. 

SECTION 14. Vote by Mail Ballots. MUNICIPALITY shall refer all requests for Vote 
by Mail ballots to SOE. Unless MUNICIPALITY or the Clerk for 
MUNCIPALITY provides written directions to the contrary, SOE agrees 
to accept all requests for Vote by Mail ballots by telephone, mail, or in 
person. SOE also agrees to mail Vote by Mail & overseas ballots as 
requested by registered voters, receive and securely store any voted 
Vote by Mail ballots, verify the signatures on any returned voted Vote 
by Mail ballot certificates and to account for all Vote by Mail ballots. 

Revised 12/3/2018 

49 



2019 ELECTIONS AGREEMENT Page 7 of 9 

MUNICIPALITY shall provide adequate staff assistance for the opening 
and handling of Vote by Mail ballots during the counting process and 
shall coord inate a date for the opening and counting of such Vote by 
Mail ballots with SOE. 

SECTION 15. Transportation of Elections Equipment and Supplies. SOE will be 
responsible for delivery and pick up of any voting equipment. One day 
prior to Election Day, voting equipment will be delivered by SOE, or a 
third party representative of SOE. One day after Election Day, voting 
equipment wi ll be picked up by SOE, or a third party representative of 
SOE. MUNICIPALITY shall reimburse SOE, for any and all costs 
incurred for equipment delivery and pickup. SOE shall have full 
discretion and authority to hire and employ any outside third parties to 
assist with or perform delivery and pick-up of voting equipment. 
MUNCIPALITY IS NOT PERMITTED TO DELIVER ANY ELECTION 
EQUIPMENT. 

SECTION 16. Location and Storage of Voting Equipment. All voting equipment shall be 
stored, maintained and located in a well-protected, secure, temperature
controlled and indoor room or facility. Once the voting equipment is 
delivered to a voting site or early voting site, no equipment shall be 
relocated without the prior written approval of SOE. 

SECTION 17. Canvassing of Election Results. MUNICIPALITY shall schedule and 
coordinate the date on which the municipal canvassing board is to 
assemble to canvass the results of the election. If applicable, 
MUNCIPALITY shall coordinate for the use of SOE facilities to conduct 
the canvassing board activities. MUNCI PALITY shall notice and 
advertise, as needed, the dates of any canvassing board meetings. 
MUNICIPALITY shall convene the canvassing board to determine 
which voted Vote by Mail ballots are to be tabulated. MUNICIPALITY 
shall provide for collection of results from each precinct(s). 

SECTION 18. Audits. MUNICIPALITY shall provide necessary personnel to conduct 
the audit as prescribed by law. MUNICIPALITY agrees to pay SOE for 
any additional costs as may be necessary, including overtime 
expenses, for conducting the audit. 

SECTION 19. Post-Election Records Retention. SOE shall process affirmation forms 
and sort, inventory and pack all election materials for pick up by the 
Municipal Clerk for retention and disposition. MUNICIPALITY shall 
store or cause to be stored all necessary election records and ballots 
until expiration of retention period as prescribed by applicable Florida 
Statutes and rules. 

Revised 12/3/20 18 

50 



2019 ELECTIONS AGREEMENT Page 8 of 9 

SECTION 20. Voter History. MUNICIPALITY and SOE will make mutually acceptable 
arrangements for recording voter history. The date selected for 
undertaking this activity may occur subsequent to the conclusion of all 
election dates and outside of the terms of this agreement but both 
parties agree to work toward recording voter history in a timely 
manner. 

SECTION 21. Other Necessary Costs. Any additional costs or fees that may be 
incurred by SOE in compliance with the Florida Election Code and as a 
direct result of either any Election, if necessary, that are not specified 
in this contract shall be paid for by MUNICIPALITY at rates and fees as 
established by SOE. Examples of such additional costs or 
reimbursements include, but are not limited to, the following: 

A. Recounts- Any expenditure for conducting a recount, including any 
overtime expenses for reprogramming voting equipment, and other 
expenses as may be necessary to conduct a recount; and, 

B. Attorney's Fees and Costs - Actual attorney's fees and costs 
incurred by SOE for research on any election re lated matter shall 
be invoiced by SOE for reimbursement by MUNICIPALITY. 

SECTION 22. Hold Harmless Covenant. MUNICIPALITY shall at all times hereafter 
indemnify, hold harmless and, at SOE's option, defend or pay for an 
attorney selected by SOE to defend SOE, its officers, agents, and 
employees against any and all claims, damages, injuries, losses, 
liabil ities, and expenditures of any kind, including attorney fees, court 
costs, and expenses, arising out of or resulting from any or all acts of 
omission or commission of or by the MUNICIPALITY, its officers, agents, 
or employees, with respect to any election conducted pursuant to this 
Agreement. MUNICIPALITY also agrees to indemnify SOE against any 
administrative challenges, civi l suits, or other legal challenges or appeals 
that may arise, including all attorney's fees and costs, from the contest of 
election results or the validation of any candidate qualifications. 

Parties recognize that SOE is a state agency or subdivision as defined in 
Section 768.28, Florida Statutes and that nothing herein is intended to 
serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity by SOE for acts or omissions to 
which sovereign immunity applies. Furthermore, nothing herein shall be 
construed as consent by SOE, as a state agency or subdivision of the 
State of Florida, to be sued by third parties in any matter arising out of 
any contract. 

Revised 12/3/2018 

51 



2019 ELECTIONS AGREEMENT Page 9 of 9 

SECTION 23. Entirety and Amendments. The Agreement embodies the entire 
agreement between SOE and MUNICIPALITY and supersedes all prior 
agreements and understandings relating to the conduct of elections. No 
modification, amendment or alteration to this Agreement shall be 
effective or binding unless submitted in writing and executed by duly 
authorized representatives of both SOE and MUNICIPALITY. 

SECTION 24. Effective Date. The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be the latest 
date of execution by duly authorized representatives of SOE and 
MUNICIPALITY as shown on the signature page hereto. 

Please initial in the appropriate YES NO 
columns 

MUNICIPALITY will pay return postage 
for Vote by Mail ballots 

MUN ICIPALITY gives SOE permission to 
begin processing Vote by Mail ballots 
prior to Election evening 

MUNICIPALITY wil l use 2018 SOE 
Canvassing Criteria 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we, the undersigned, do he reby state that we have the 
authority to bind and obligate as promised herein , SOE and MUNICIPALITY for 
purposes of executing this Agreement on the dates set forth below. 

Signature 

Bi ll Cowles 

Name (Printed or Typed) 

O range County Supervisor of Elections 

Title 

Date 

Witness Signature 

Witness Name (Printed or Typed) 

Signature 

Name (Printed or Typed) 

Title 

Date 

Witness Signature 

Witness Narne (Printed or Typed) 

Revised 12/3/201 8 

52 



Edgewood Police Department 
City Council Report January 2019 

TYPE OF ACTIVITY DEC REPORT JAN REPORT 

Residential 1 1 
Burglaries 

Commercial 0 0 
Burglaries 

Auto Burglaries 4 1 
Theft 2 2 
Assault/Battery 1 0 
Sexual Battery 1 0 
Homicides 0 0 
Robbery 0 0 
Traffic Accident 9 6 

Traffic Citations 138 114 
Red light Citations 571 539 

Traffic Warnings 180 163 

Felony Arrests 2 3 
Misdemeanor 4 3 
Arrests 

Warrant Arrests 3 0 
Traffic Arrests 3 2 
DUI Arrests 0 2 

• On December 12th members of the Edgewood Police Department and city hall prepared a dinner 

for the Ronald McDonald House of Centra l Florida. 

• In December the Edgewood Police Department took toys, gift cards, and supplies to the Orlando 

Union Rescue Mission and the Ronald McDonald House of Central Florida to help the families 

staying there. 

• On December 15th the Edgewood Police Department participated in the annual Santa Fly ln. 

• On December 21, 2018 the Edgewood Police Department wrote a warrant for the arrest of a 

suspect who was fraudulently stealing money f rom her employer through t he use of PayPal. The 

department had to subpoena numerous websites to gather enough information to obtain this 

warrant and positively identify the suspect. 

• January is the kick off of the Law Enforcement Torch Run Campaign. During the month of 

January the Edgewood Police Department along with other agencies, will be going around to 

Publix Stores in the area and thanking them for their contribution to the Law Enforcement Torch 

Run for Special Olympics. 

• January 29th_31't is the departments' mock assessment for Accreditation. There will three 

assessors from various Police agencies on site reviewing our agency for Accreditation. 

Dates reflected in report are from December 8, 2018 to January 7th, 2019 

53 


